Kerr-Tar

Regional Council
Of Governments
Diane Cox
Executive Director
July 5. 2022

Member i .
Governments To: Mr. Robert Davie, Town Administrator

Town of Warrenton

113 S. Bragg Street
COUNTIES P.O. Box 281
Franklin
Granville Warrenton, NC 27589-0281
Person
Vance Re: Proposed amendments to the Zoning and Historic Preservation Ordinance
Warren regarding NCGS 160D.
MUNICIPALITIES
Bunn Dear Robert:
Butner
(O LT On behalf of Kerr- Tar Regional Council of Governments, | want to thank you,
Zf::g::g: Mayor Gardner and the Town Board for the apportunity to provide the update to your
Kittrell zoning and historic preservation ordinance to comply with current North Carolina
Louisburg General Statutes regarding zoning regulations. | would also like to thank the planning
Macon board for their work in reviewing and making recommendations regarding the changes.
Middleburg
Norlina
Oxford In order to assist your board in their review of these proposed changes, | have provided
Roxboro a summary below:
Stem
S ED 1. Page 12- Changed Statutory Authority to N.C.G.S. § 160D.
Warrenton
Youngsville 2. Page 13- Under jurisdiction, added the statutory requirement regarding 160D as well

as statement regarding the non-restriction of Bona- fide farms and ability to agree to
apply for zoning of entire parcel if split between two jurisdictions. Pages 14-21 includes
various definitions added.

3. Page 23- Permit choice is added noting that a developer can use their choice of
current or proposed regulations in the event the project is being designed or permitted
during the development and approval of the new regulations regarding 160D.

4. Page 24 and others- There are no longer conditional and special use permits. Going
forward they will be processed as special use permits.

5. Page 34- Government buildings and the applicability of the regulations regarding the
erection, construction and use of buildings by the State of North Carolina and its
political subdivisions.

6. Page 35-36 — Regulations regarding the Official Zoning Map for the Town.

7. Page 41- Added wireless telecommunications to the uses for R-20 zoning district.

8. Page 64-77- Added new Section 151.092 regarding rules for siting wireless
telecommunications facilities.

Planning and Development for a Better Region K
PO Box 709 - 1724 Graham Avenue - Henderson, NC 27536 - Phone {252) 436-2040 - Toll Free {866) 506-6223 - Fax (252) 436-2055



9. Page 78- The zoning administrator or staff member cannot make an administrative
decision on a requirement of the zoning ordinance if the outcome has a direct,
substantial, and readily identifiable impact on the staff member or if the applicant or
other person has a close familial business or other associational relationship. it is noted
that the planning board felt that a domestic partner should be included as well
regarding possible conflicts of interest and also includes minor modifications that can be
made by the Zoning Administrator without going back to the approving board.
10. Page 80- Permit Expiration

Zoning permits- 1 year

Building permits- 6 months
11. Page 82- 151.109 Rights of Appeal

Modified statutory authority

12. Page 84- Requirements regarding public and evidentiary hearing notices
13. Page 90- When voting, all require a simple majority with the exception of a variance
which still requires a 4/5 vote of the board.
14. Page 103- Town Board action regarding planning board review and consistency
statement with the Town’s comprehensive plan. {On going)
15. Page 103- Violation Remedies- added procedures and new amounts regarding civil
penalties.
16. Page 108- 109- Site specific vesting plans —allows for phased projects to be vested in
the event of changes to the zoning ordinance as the projects are built.

The Historic Preservation Ordinance and Historic District Rules of Procedure were also
modified to reflect the correct general statute and are included with the zoning

ordinance amendment far your consideration.

Thank you again and | also look forward to working with you on the comprehensive
plan.

Sincerely,

‘-%rank Frazig (;

Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments
Enclosures

Cc: Tom Hardy, Planning Board Chair
Michael Kelly, Planning Director, Kerr-Tar Regional Council of Governments



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

CHAPTER 151: ZONING CODE

Section

General Provisions

151.01 Statutory authority
151.02 Title

151.03 Purpose

151.04 Jurisdiction

151.05 Definitions

151.06 Minimum requirements
151.07 Severability

151.08 Repeal of conflicting ordinances
151.09 Statute of limitations

151.092 Telecommunications TowersEaeilities

General Regulations

151.20 Application of regulations

151.21 Interpretation of regulations

151.22 Exceptions and modifications

151.23 Visibility at inter§ections

151.24 Regulations concerning home occupations
151.25 Accessory uses

151.26 Buffer strips

151.27 Nonconforming uses, structures and lots

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF CRDINANCES - Table of Cantents

index Page 10




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codcs

151.28 Complexes

151.29 Requirement for street abutment
151.30 Storage of junk on vacant lots
151.31 Stream buffer areas required
District Regulations

151.40 Official zoning map

151.41 Uncertainty as to boundaries
151.42 Amendments to zoning map
151.43 True copy to be maintained; replacement and preservation

151.44 Establishment and purpose of districts

151.45 Regulations for Residential, Agricultural, Residential-Subdivision, Single- and
Multi-Family Residential Districts

151.46 Regulations for Commercial and Industrial Districts

Parking and Loading Requirements

151.60 Off-street parking requirements

151.61 Off-street loading requirements

Signs

151.75 Compliance with regulations required
151.76 General sign regulations

151.77 Prohibited signs
151.78 Off-site advertising signs

151.79 Nonconforming signs

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 11




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

151.80 Permitted signs
Mobile Homes and Mobile Home Parks
151.90 Mobile homes on individual lots

151.91 Mobile home parks

Administration

151.105 Zoning administrator

151.106 Zoning permit

151.107 Certificate of occupancy/compliance
151.108 Conformance with plans

151.1069 Right of appeal

151.110 Board of Adjustment

151.111 Special and conditional uses

151.112 Application and review procedures
151.113 Conditions which must be met by special and conditional uses
151.114 Amendments

151.115 Violation remedies

15199 — Penalty
Appendix: Official Zoning Map

General Provisions
§151.01 STATUTORY AUTHORITY.

I In pursuance of the authority granted by the N.C.G.S. €h-§ 160DA, Ast—19Past3, this
chapter is ordained by the Town Board or Commissioners.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents tndex Page 12




CHAPTER 151: Zoning

(Ord. passed 12-16-85}
§151.02 TITLE.

This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the Town Zoning Ordinance and may be
referred to as the Zoning Code.

(Ord, passed 12-16-85)

§151.03 PURPOSE.

(A) For the purpose of promoting health, safety, morals, and general welfare, this chapter is
adopted by the governing body to regulate and restrict the height, number of stories, and size of
buildings and other structures, the percentage of lots that may be occupied, the size of yards,
courts, and other open spaces, the density of population, and the location and use of buildings,
structures and land for trade, industry, residence, or other purposes.

(B) The zoning regulations in this code are designed to lessen congestion in the streets; to
secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; to promote health and general welfare; to
provide adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration
of population; and to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools,
parks, and other public requirements. The regulations have been made with reasonable
consideration, among other things, as to the character of the jurisdiction and its areas and their
peculiar suitability for particular uses, and with a view to conserving the value of buildings and
encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the jurisdiction.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)
§151.04 JURISDICTION.

The area to which this chapter applies is shown on the official zoning map.
The regulations presented in this chapter shall apply to all property within the
corporate limits of the town, and within the territory beyond such corporate limits
as now or hereafter fixed, for a distance of approximately one mile in all directions,
as established by an ordinance with N.C.G.S. §168A-360160D-202(d}, which are on
file in the Office of the County Register of Deeds. This ordinance shall in no way
regulate, restrict, or prohibit any Bona-Fide Farm and its related uses pursuant to
G.S. §160D-903 : except that any such use of property for non-farm purposes shall
be subject to these regulations. For a parcel in two jurisdictions, the owner and the
jurisdictions may agree for development regulations from one jurisdiction to apply
to the entire parcel. (G.5.160D-203.}

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 13




CHAPTER 51: Zoning Codes

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.05 DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context
clearly indicates or requires different meaning. Words used in the present tense include the future
tense. Words used in the singular number include to plural, and words used in the plural include
the singular. Words used in the masculine gender include the feminine gender.

ABUTTING. The property directly touches another piece of property.

ACCESSORY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, OR USE. A building, structure, or use on the same
lot with, or of a nature customarily incidental or subordinate to, and of a character related to the
principal use or structure.

ALLEY. A strip of land, owned publicly or privately, set aside primarily for vehicular service
access to the back or side of properties otherwise abutting on a street.

BED AND BREAKFAST. The use of a private dwelling unit to offer “bed and breakfast”
accommodations to eight or fewer persons per night for a period of less than seven consecutive
calendar days. See N.C.G.S. § 130A-247

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT. The Board of Adjustment of the Town of Warrenton, North
Carolina, established by this chapter.

BOARDING HOUSE. A structure which contains individual rooms which are rented to the
general public for periods in excess of 30 days. The property owner or property agent must
reside on the same premises. No meals may be prepared and served to said occupants by the
property owner or property agent.

BUILDING. Any structure having a roof supported by columns or by walls, and intended for
shelter, housing, or enclosure of persons, animals or chattels.

BUILDING, HEIGHT OF. The vertical distance measured from the grade to the highest point
of the coping of a flat roof; to the deck line of a mansard roof; or to the height level between the
eaves and ridge of a gable, hip, or gambrel roof.

Building, Principal. A building which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which it is
located

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE CF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 14




Close Familial Relationshi . As ouse arent child brother sister rand arent or randchild.
The term ‘ncludes the ste  haf and in-law re a ionshi s includin domestic arthers

CONDOMINIUM. A project meeting the requirements of the N.C.G.S. Ch. 47A. The type of
structure and use rather than the condominium form of ownership shall be the determining factor
in deciding whether a use is permitted in a district.

Development- The construction, erection, alteration, enlargement, renovation, substantial
repair, movement to another site, or demolition of any structure. Excavation, grading, filling,
clearing, or alteration of land. The subdivision of land as defined in G.S. § 160D-802. The
initiation of substantial change in the use of land or the intensity of the use of land

DWELLING, MULTI-FAMILY. A building arranged to be occupied by more than two families,
the building having more than two dwelling units, but excluding mobile homes and townhouses.

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY. A sinle ui rovidin com lete inde endent livin
acilities for one or more ersons includ'n ermanent rovisions for livin slee in  eatin
cookin and sanitation. ' ’ C '

>

k]

DWELLING, TWO-FAMILY (also referred to as a Duplex) A building es1 ed for
or te-beexc usively occupied bye two families livn inde endentl of each other The two
dwellin units a e attached b a wal b t have se arae ound-floor entrances. A du lex is
distinct from and is not cons dered a townhome or n a artment condominium., C

2

DWELLING UNIT. A building or portion thereof designed arranged, and or used for the living
quarters for one of more persons living as a single  family with cooking facilities, excluding
units in rooming, boarding, and tourist houses, family or group care homes, or hotels or motels or
other buildings designed for transient residence.

FAMILY. One of more persons related by blood, adoption, or marriage, living together as a
single housekeeping unit, exclusive of household servants. A number of persons not exceeding
five living together as a single hou ekeeping unit though not related by blood adoption or
marriage, shall be deemed to con titute a amily as sha a foster care home approved by the
state.

FAMILY CARE HOME. A facility as defined in N.C.G.8. §160D-90 .

FLOOR AREA, GROSS. The number of square feet of total floor area bounded by the exterior
faces of a structure, plus the number of square feet of unenclosed space devoted to the conduct of
the use, excluding basements and unenclosed porches, balconies, and terraces, unless used in

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 15




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

conjunction with the use, such as for outdoor eating, merchandising, storage, assembly, or
similar uses, and excluding off-street parking and loading areas.

HOME OCCUPATION. An occupation for gain or support customarily conducted on the
premises by a person or family residing thereon. HOME OCCUPATION shall not be deemed to
include a tourist home.

JUNK YARD. Any land or area used, in whole or in part, for commercial storage and/or sale of
waste paper, rags, scrap, metal, or other junk, and including storage of motor vehicles and
dismantling of such vehicles or machinery.

KENNEL. An establishment for the keeping or breeding of dogs for profit.

LOT. A single lot of record, or more than one contiguous lot of record in the same ownership,
which lot or lots of record are not divided by any street or public alley, and excluding any part of
a lot or lots of record which, when served from contiguous land in the same ownership, creates a
nonconformity or a lot or parcel which does not meet to dimensional requirements of this
chapter. LOT includes PLOT, PARCEL, and TRACT.

LOT, CORNER. A lot which occupies the interior angle at the intersection of two or more right-
of-way lines. A lot abutting on the right-of-way of a curved street or streets shall be considered a
comer lot if straight lines drawn from the foremost points of the side lot lines to the foremost
point of the lot meet at an interior angle of less than 135 degrees.

LOT COVERAGE, MAXIMUM IN PERCENT. The maximum percent of the lot which may be
covered with structures. All yard requirements must be met in addition to lot coverage
requirements.

LOT DEPTH. The distance between the midpoints of straight lines connecting the foremost
points of the side lot lines in front and the rearmost points of the side lot lines in the rear. On lots
having an access strip extending from the front of the main portion of the lot in order to comply
with the requirements of §151.29, the foremost points of the side lot lines shall be measured at
the place where the access strip joins the main portion of the lot.

LOT OF RECORD. A lot which is part of a subdivision recorded with the Office of the Register
of Deeds of Warren County or a lot described be metes and bounds, the description of which has
been so recorded.

LOT WIDTH. The distance between straight lines connecting front and rear lot lines at each side
of the lot, measured across the rear of the required front yard; provided however, that width
between side lot lines at their foremost points (where they intersect at the right-of-way line, or
for lots having an access strip extending from the front of the main portion of the lot in order to
comply with the requirements of §151.29, at the place where the access strip joins the main

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 16




CHAPTER 151: Zoning

portion of the lot) shall not be less than 80% of the required lot width, except in the case of the
turning circle of cul-de-sacs where the 80% requirement shall not apply.

MAP, ZONING MAP OR WARRENTON ZONING MAP. The Official Zoning Map of
Warrenton, North Carolina.

MOBILE HOME. Any vehicle or structure which is or was originally constructed, designed to
be transported by motor vehicle upon a public highway and designed, equipped, used or intended
to be used primarily for human habitation, including any additions, attachments, annexes,
foundations and appurtenances thereto. This does not include modular homes which meet
conventional home construction standards and are transported on a flatbed truck, nor does it
include travel trailers and campers.

MOBILE HOME PARK. A lot or part thereof, of any parcel of land of at least five acres which
is used or offered as a location for mobile homes used for residential purposes.

Modular Home. Pursuant to NCGS § 160D-911 , a factory built structure that is designed to be

the North Carolina building Code, and bears a seal or label issued by the Department of
Insurance pursuant to G.S. § 143-139.1. A detached residential dwelling unit is designed for
transportation after off-site fabrication on flatbed trucks or trailers. At the site, a modular home
must be placed on a permanent foundation , and heating and cooling systems, plumbing fixtures,
and electrical appliances must be installed before being occupied.

NET ACREAGE, ACRES, LAND AREA, SQUARE FOOTAGE OF LAND AREA. Land area
with streets, right-of-ways, driveways which serve as access to more than two units or uses, and
major transmission line easements not included in its measurement.

PERSON. Includes a firm, association, organization, partnership, corporation, trust and company
as well as an individual.

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT. Defined in §151.113(C).
PLANNING BOARD. The Planning Board of the Town of Warrenton, North Carolina,

PRINCIPAL BUILDING USE, OR STRUCTURE. The main use of a lot or the building or
structure in or on which the main use of the lot takes place.

Public Notice. Public notice of a hearing means notice of the time and place thereof published in

a newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Warrenton in accordance with the
requirements of G.S. § 160D-601(a).

Quasi-judicial Decision. A decision involving the finding of facts regarding specific application
of development regulation and that reguires the exercise of discretion when applying the
standards of the regulation. Quasi-judicial may include but are not limited to decisions involving

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 17




variances $ ecial use ermits certificates of a ro riateness and a eals of administrative
determinations. Decisions on the a roval of subdivision lats and site lans are uasi-"udicial in
nature if the ordinance re lation authorizes a decision-makin board to a roved or den the
a lication based not onl u on whether the a lication com lies with the s ecific re uirements
set forth in the re lation but also on whether the a lication com lies with one or more

generally stated standards requiring a discretionary decision on the findings to be made by the
decision-making board.

RESTAURANT. An establishment whose primary purpose us serving meals to patrons.

RESTAURANT, DRIVE-IN OR TAKE-OUT. Any restaurant which make provision for curb
service, outdoor service, or a drive-in window, or any restaurant more than 10% of whose
average daily customers take their food or beverages out of the restaurant.

RESTAURANT, INDOOR. Any restaurant except a drive-in or take-out restaurant.

RIGHT-OF-WAY, STREET. A strip of land, owned publicly or privately, which affords the
principal means of access to abutting property.

ROOF LINE. The top edge of the roof or the top edge of the parapet, whichever forms the top
line of the building silhouette, but not including penthouses or equipment structures.

SHALL. 1t is always mandatory and not merely directory.

SHOPPING CENTER. Any building or group of buildings on the same site containing more
than two retail or wholesale trade establishments.

SHORT TERM RESIDENTIAL RENTAL. The rental of a single bedroom in a private,
resident-occupied dwelling or guest house on the same property, where overnight lodging
accommodations are provided to transients for compensation and where the use is subordinate
and incidental to the main residential use of the building. The owner may rent no more than two
bedrooms. The duration of said lodging shall be less than 30 days at a time.

SIGN. Any outdoor letter, symbol, number, trademark, or other form of publicity or combination
of these as well as the surface on which they are painted of to which they are attached, and any
background material, coloring, shapes, or other trim shall be considered a sign, unless entirely
enclosed by a fence or wall such that the above items and any structure or lighting attached to or
accessory to them cannot be seen off the premises on which they are located. Works of fine art
which in no way identify or advertise a product or business shall be excluded from this
definition.

(1) GROUND SIGN. A sign erected on a freestanding frame, mast, and/or pole and
not attached to any building, fence, or wall.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Caontents Index Page 18



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

(2) IDENTIFICATION SIGN. A sign which contains any or all of the following:
the name of the occupants, owner, or establishment, the type of establishment, the
name of the franchise, the hours of operation, and house number, when located on
the site of the establishment.

(3) ON-SITE ADVERTISING SIGN. A sign which contains information about an
establishment or the products or services that it offers, other than that contained in
an identification sign, when located on the same site as the establishment to which
it refers.

(4) OFF-SITE ADVERTISING SIGN. A sign which contains information about an
establishment, business, commodity, activity, or service not conducted, sold, or
offered upon the premises where such sign is located.

(5) PROJECTING SIGN, A sign which extends beyond and is attached to a
building wall and may extend over a public right-of-way.

{6) ROOF SIGN. A sign attached to and extending upward from a roof of a structure.

(7) WALL SIGN. A sign which is attached flat to the wall or fagade of a building, or
to a fence or wall.

SIGN, AREA. The area of the smallest regular polygon composed of eight lines or less, circle,
half-circle, ellipse, or combination thereof, which will encompass the entire sign, excluding the
base or apron, supports, or other structural members unless some part of the message appears on
them, in which case they shall be included. Where symbols, letter, or numbers are attached
separately to a structure, including a sign structure or to separate surfaces, the area between the
separate items or letters, whether open or solid, shall be computed as part of the sign area. The
total sign area for a double-faced sign shall be measured on the largest face of the sign. Where
three-dimensional figures are used as signs, the largest dimensions of such figure shall be
projected on a vertical plane and measured in the standard manner.

SIGN HEIGHT. The vertical distance measured from the adjacent street grade or from the
ground on which it rests, whichever allows the sign the greatest height, to the top of the sign.

Special Use. A use that would not be generally appropriate without restriction throughout the
zoning district, but which if controlled as to number , area, location, or relation to the
neighborhood, would promote the health, safety, morals, general welfare. order, comfort,
convenience, appearance, or prosperity. Such uses may be permitted in such zoning district as
special provisions for such is made in this zoning ordinance,

STRUCTURE. Anything constructed or erected with a fixed location on the ground, or attached
to something having a fixed location on the ground. Among other things, structures include

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 19




buildings, mobile homes, fences, signs, and swimming pools. STRUCTURE includes
BUILDING.

Telecommunication Structure. A structure used in the provision of services described in the
definition of a wireless telecommunication structure.

Telecommunication Tower and telecommunications Site and Wireless Telecommunication
Structure. A structure facilit or location desi ed or intended to be used as or used to su ort
antennas or other transmittin or receivin devices. This includes without limit towers of all
types and structures that employ camouflage technology. including but not limited to structures
such as a multi-sto  buildin church stee le silo water tower s1  or other structures that can
be used to mitigate the visual impact of an antenna or the functional equivalent of such |
includin all related facilities such as cablin e ui ment shelters and other structures associated
with the site. It is a structure and facility intended for transmitting and/or receiving radio,
television cellular a in 911 ersonal telecommunications services commercial satellite
services microwave services and services not listed b the FCC but not ex ressl exem t from
the Towns’ buildin and ermittin authorit excludin for rivate non-commercial radio and
television rece tion and rivate citizens’ bands amateur radio and other similar non-commercial
telecommunications where the height of the facility is below thirty-five (35) feet in height.

Telecommunications. The transmission and/or reception of audio, video, data, and other
information b wire radio fre uenc 1i ht and other electronic or electroma etic s stems.

TOWN BOARD, GOVERNING BODY, AND WARRENTON BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS. The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Warrenton, North Carolina.

TOWNHOUSE. A single-family dwelling unit constructed in a series or group of attached units
with property lines separating such units.

USED. As applied to any land or building, USED shall be construed to include the words
INTENDED, ARRANGED, OR DESIGNED TO BE USED

Variance. A modification of the existing ordinance by the Town of Warrenton Planning and
Zonin board when strict enforcement of this ordinance would cause undue hardshi owin
to circumstances uni ue to the individual ro ert on which the variance is  anted.

Vested Ri ht. The n  t to undertake and com lete the develo ment and use of ro ert under
the terms and conditions of n approved site specific vesting plan (formerly called a” site specific

development plan” or an approved phase development plan.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents



YARD. An open space on the same lot with a principal structure or use unobstructed and
unoccupied by any structure or portion thereof or parking or loading area, except as provided in
this chapter.

YARD, FRONT. A yard extending the full width of the lot and situated between the right-of-way
line and the front line of the principal structure or use projected to the side lines of the lot. Depth
of required front yards shall be measured at right angles to a straight line joining the foremost
points of the side lot lines. The foremost point of the side lot lines in the case of rounded
property corners at street intersections shall be assumed to be the point at which the side and
front lines would have met without such rounding. The foremost points of the side lot lines in the
case of lots having an access strip extending from the front of the main portion of the lot in order
to comply with the requirements of §151.29 shall be measured at the place where the access strip
joins the main portion of the lot. However, nothing may be placed in the access strip that is not
permitted by the chapter to be placed in a front yard. Front and rear yard lines shall be paraliel.

YARD, REAR. A yard extending the full width of the lot and situated between the rear line of the
lot and the principal structure or use projected to the side lines of the lot.

YARD, SIDE. A vyard extending along either side of a lot measured from front yard line to rear
yard line and lying between the side lot line and the principal structure or use on the lot.

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR. The official charged with the enforcement of the chapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.06 MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS.

In its interpretation and apphlication the provisions of this chapter shall be held to be
minimum requirements, adopted for the promotion of the public health safety and general
welfare. Wherever the requirement of unlawfully adopted rules, regulations, ordinances, deed
restrictions, or covenants are at variance with the requirements of this chapter, the most
restrictive, or that imposing the highest standards, shall govern.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

§151.07 SEVERABILITY.

This chapter and the various parts, sections, subsections, and clauses thereof are hereby
declared to be severable. If any part, sentence, paragraph, subsection, section, or clause is
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, it is hereby provided that the remainder of the chapter shall
not be affected thereby. If any part, sentence, paragraph, subsection, section, or clause is
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid as applied to a particular property, buildings, or structures
shall not be affected hereby. Whenever any condition or limitation is included in an order
authorizing a zoning permit, special use permit, conditional use permit, variance, certificate of
zoning compliance, certificate of occupancy, or site plan approval, it shall be conclusively
presumed that the authorizing officer or body considered such condition or limitation necessary
to carry out the spirit and purpose of this chapter or the requirements of some provisions hereof,
and to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, and that the officer or board would not have
granted the authorization to which the condition or limitation pertains except in the belief that the
condition or limitation was unlawful.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 22




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

§151.08 REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances of the town which are in conflict or inconsistent with
this chapter are repealed and superseded to the extent necessary to give this chapter full force and
effect.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.09 STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

| In accordance with N.C.G.S. §160D-1405A-364-1, a cause of action as to the validity of this
chapter, or amendment thereto, shall accrue upon the adoption of this chapter or amendment
thereto, and shali be brought within two months as provided in N.C.G.S. §1-54.1.

(N.C.G.S. §160A-364.1) (Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.10 PERMIT CHOICE

If an application made in accordance with local regulation is submitted for development
approval required pursuant to this ordinance and a development changes between the time the
application was submitted and a decision is made, the applicant may choose which version of the
development regulation will apply to the application . If the development permit applicant
chooses the version of the rule or ordinance applicable at the time of the permit application , the
development permit applicant shall not be required to await the outcome of the amendment to the
rule, map, or ordinance prior to acting on the development permit. This section applies to all

General Regulations
§151.020 APPLICATIONS OF REGULATIONS.

The regulations set forth in this chapter shall affect all land, every structure, and every use of
land and/or structure and shall apply as follows:

(A) No structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no structure or part thereof
shall be erected, moved, or structurally altered except in compliance with the regulations of this
chapter for the district in which it is located;

(B) No structure shall hereafter be erected or altered so as to exceed the height limit or
density regulations of this chapter for the district in which it is located;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 23




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codces

(C) No lot, even though it may consist of one or more adjacent lots of record in single
ownership, shall be reduced in size so that the lot area per dwelling unit, lot width, yard and lot
coverage requirements and other requirements of this chapter are not maintained. This
prohibition shall not be construed to prevent the purchase of condemnation of narrow strips of
land for public utilities or street right-of-way purposes;

(D) No part of a yard or other open space required about any structure or use for the purpose
of complying with the provisions of this chapter shall be included as part of a yard or other open
space similarly required for another structure or use;

(E) In any district, no more than one principal building or use may be erected on a single lot
of record, except as specifically permitted in other sections of this chapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85}

§151.021 INTERPRETATION OF REGULATIONS.

The regulations in this chapter shall be enforced and interpreted according to the following
rules:

(A) Uses not designated in the district regulations as permitted, eenditional; or special uses
shall be prohibited. Conditionaland Special uses are permitted according to the additional
regulations imposed. These eenditional-and special uses can be approved only by the Board of
Adjustment or Board of Commissioners as specified in this chapter. Additional uses may be
added to the chapter by amendment;

(B) Regulations set forth by this chapter shall be minimum regulations. If the requirements
set forth in this chapter are at variance with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted uses,
regulations, or ordinances, the more restrictive or higher standard shall govern;

(C) Unless restrictions established by covenants with the land are prohibited by or contrary
to the provisions of this chapter, nothing herein contained shall be construed to render such
covenants inoperative.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.022 EXCEPTIONS AND MODIFICATIONS.

(A) The minimum front yard requirements of this chapter for dwellings shall not apply on
any lot where the average front yard of existing dwellings located wholly or in part within 100
feet on each side of such lot within the same block and zoning district and fronting on the same

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 24




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

side of the street is less than the minimum required front yard. In such cases, the front yard on
such lot may be less than the adjacent dwelling with the greatest front yard depth or the average
front yard of existing dwellings located wholly or in part within 100 feet on each side, whichever
1s greater.

(B) In any residential district for comner lots, the side yard requirements along the side street
shall be increased by ten feet.

(C) The Board of Adjustment shall review, as a eenditional special use, structures such as
church spires, belfries, cupolas, and domes not intended for human occupancy, monuments,
water towers, observation towers, transmission towers, chimneys, smokestacks, conveyors, flag
poles, radio towers, masts, aerials, and similar structures, which exceed the height limitations of
this chapter.

(D) Uncovered stairs, landings, terraces, porches, balconies, and fire escapes may project
into any yard, but may not be closer than ten feet to any lot line.

(E) Architectural projections, such as chimneys, flues, sills, eaves, belt courses and
ornaments, may project into any required yard, but such projection shall not exceed three feet
and may not be closer than ten feet to any lot line.

(F) The requirements of this chapter do not apply to roads, water, sewer, gas electric,
telephone, and similar utility lines except as specifically mentioned in this chapter.

(G) Lot width on lots which front on the turn-around circle of a cul-de-sac may be measured
at the line formed by connecting the midpoint of the side lot line of the shorter side with a point
on the longer side lot line which is the same distance from the front lot line as the midpoint of the
shorter side, or if both side lot lines are the same length, at the line connecting the midpoints of
the side lot lines. All yard requirements must be met on such lots. If a lot has more than two
stdes, the side lot lines to be used are the two which connect with the front lot line.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.023 VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS.

On a comner lot, nothing shall be left erected, planted, or allowed to grow in such a manner as
materially to impede vision between a height of two and one-half and ten feet in a triangular area
formed by a diagonal line between two points on the right-of-way lines, 20 feet from where they
intersect.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 25




CHAPTER I51: Zoning Codes

§151.024 REGULATIONS CONCERNING HOME OCCUPATIONS.

Home occupations are permitted in all districts only as an incidental use and shall comply
with the following regulations:

(A) No person other than a resident of the dwelling shall be engaged in such occupation.

(B) No more than three customers, clients, or patrons shall come to the dwelling at any one
time nor more than ten in any one day.

(C) No more than two vehicles may be used in the conduct of the home occupation. Any
such vehicle shall be parked off the street. The parking of any such vehicles on the property,
other than an auto mobile, shall be in an enclosed building as described in §151.24(D) below, or
shall be a conditional use subject to approval by the Board of Adjustment.

(D) No more than 25% of the total actual floor area of the dwelling or 500 square feet,
whichever is less, shall be used in the conduct of the home occupation. In addition, one
accessory building not exceeding 1,000 square feet, shall be a conditional use in connection with
the home occupation, to house commercial vehicles and/or for storage of materials used in
connection with the home occupation. The accessory building may not be used for
manufacturing, processing, instruction, sales, service, or other work in connection with the home
occupation. All lot coverage, dimensional, and other requirements of this chapter must be met be
such accessory building. Such accessory building must resemble a residential garage. A sketch of
the proposed building and list of the materials to be used on the outside must be submitted with
the application for a conditional use permit.

(E) Notwithstanding the provisions of §151.024(D), a home greenhouse shall be permitted
provided that such greenhouse meets the requirements of §151.025 and that any sales in
connection with such greenhouse meet the requirements of this section.

(F) No outdoor sales or storage shall be permitted in connection with the home occupation.

(G)The exterior appearance of the dwelling shall not be altered in such a manner nor shall the
occupation in the residence be conducted in such a way as to cause the premises to differ from its
residential character in exterior appearance.

(H) The use mat not emit smoke beyond that which normally occurs in the applicable zoning
district, nor shall it emit dust, vibration, odor, smoke, fumes, glare, electrical interference,
interference to radio and television reception or other nuisance and shall not be volatile or
present a fire hazard, nor may the occupation discharge into any waterway, stream, lake, or into
the ground or a septic tank any waste which will be dangerous or a nuisance to persons or
animals, or which will damage plants or crops.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 26




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

(I) No home occupation shall involve the use of electrical or mechanical equipment that
would change the fire rating of the structure in which the home occupation is conducted.

(J) There shall be no more than two deliveries per day to the premises of materials to be used
in conjunction with the home occupation and these shall take place between the hours of 7:00
a.m. and 9:00 p.m.

(K) No customers, clients, patrons, or employees other than the residents’ household may be
on the premises in connection with the home occupation before 7:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m.

(L) The following are strictly prohibited as home occupation: car washes, commercial
automotive repair garages, slaughterhouses, paint, petroleum and chemical plants, any
occupation which involves the storage of liquid petroleum, gasoline, kerosene, or other
flammable liquids, funeral homes and mortuaries, massage parlors, sale of reading or viewing
material of a pornographic nature, movie theaters, animal hospitals and kennels, bottled gas
sales.

(M) Any home occupation not complying with these regulations shall be a special use.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.025 ACCESSORY USES.

Accessory uses are permitted in any zoning district in accordance with the following
regulations:

(A) An accessory building, structure, or use is a building, structure, or use on the same lot or
site with, of a nature customarily incidental or subordinate to, and of a character related to the
principal use or structure;

(B) Accessory uses to single and two-family dwellings, and multi-family dwellings may not
include commercial uses, except as permitied as home occupations in §151.024 or for multi-
family dwellings, as allowed by the Board of Adjustment in accordance with the provisions of
§151.113;

(C) Residences for watchmen and caretakers are permitted accessory uses to research and
industrial uses;

(D)} No accessory building shall exceed 35 feet in height, nor shall any accessory building
exceed the principal building in height;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 27




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

(E) An accessory building sharing one or more common walls with the principal building
shall be considered part of the principal building for purposes of this chapter and must meet all
yard requirements applied to the principal building;

(F) No detached accessory building shall be located closer than ten feet to any other building
or mobile home;

(G) No accessory building or recreational structure or use may extend in front of the rear
line of a single or two-family dwelling or mobile home.

(H) No accessory building or recreational structure or use may extend within three feet of a
lot line, nor within 20 feet of a street right of way lane;

(I) Recreational uses and buildings accessory to apartment complexes shall be in accordance
with §151.113;

(J) Fences and walls are permitted as accessory uses provided that they comply with the
following:

(1) No fence more than four feet in height, nor retaining wall more than five feet in
height which is more than 75% solid may be placed in any front yard, including
along the side lot line to the front of any principal building, unless approved by
the Board of Commissioners, as a buffer in accordance with §151.026(F);

(2) Rear and side fences greater than seven feet in height shall be of an open type
similar to woven wire or wrought iron fencing except where a buffer with
different specifications is required elsewhere in this chapter;

(3) Fences may not exceed seven feet in height, except in commercial and industrial
districts where such fences may be no more than ten feet in height;

(4) Fences need not comply with the set back requirements of this chapter;
(5) No fence or wall shall impede vision as regulated in §151.023;
(Ord. Amended 10-14-2014)

§151.026 BUFFER STRIPS.

Whenever a buffer strip is required by this chapter, such strip shall meet the specifications of
this section, unless different specifications are given in the section where the buffer strip is
required.

(A) A buffer strip shall consist of a planted strip which shall be a minimum of 16 feet in
width, shall be composed of evergreen bushes, shrubs, and/or trees such that at least two rows of

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 28




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

coverage are provided from the ground to a height of six feet within six years and foliage
overlaps. The 16 feet required for the buffer strip shall be in addition to all normal yard
requirements of this chapter.

(B) Buffer strips shall be required in the following situations, as well as in any others
specified in other sections of this chapter: whenever a manufacturing, processing, retail,
wholesale trade, or warehousing use or public utility installation is established, a buffer strip
shall be provided wherever the lot on which the use is established abuts or is across an easement
or right-of-way from land zoned R-20, R-12, and R-8.

(C) All bufter strips shall become part of the lot on which they are located, or in the case of
commonly-owned land, shall belong to the homeowners or property-owners association.

(D) The buffer strip shall be maintained for the life of the development. Maintenance shall
be the responsibility of the property owner, or, if the property is rented, the lease

(E) If a natural screen is already in place which will adequately fulfill the purpose of the
buffer strip, the Zoning Administrator may, in writing, allow a substitution of all or part of this
screen for the buffer strip. Written permission of the Zoning Administrator shall be obtained
before removing an existing natural buffer in the location of the required buffer strip.

(F) Where, because of intense shade, or soil conditions, a planting screen cannot be expected
to thrive, the Zoning Administrator may, in writing, allow substitution or a well-maintained
wooden fence or masonry wall at least six feet in height.

(G) Where it is clear that a smaller buffer will protect neighboring property from harmful
effects, the Board of Adjustment or Town Board of Commissioners, for special uses, may reduce
the buffer to eight feet and one row of trees.

(H) For special and conditional uses, the Board may require a maintenance bond for the
buffers, as a condition of approval.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)
§151.027 NONCONFORMING USES, STRUCTURES AND LOTS.

A lawful pre-existing use, structure, or lot which does not meet the requirements of the
current zoning code is called a nonconformity. Special provisions apply to nonconformities and
these are listed in divisions (A) through (E) of this section. In lieu of the provisions in this
section, nonconforming signs shall comply with the requirements in §§151.075 through 151.080
of this chapter.

(A) Existing substandard structures.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 29




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codecs

(1) The conforming use of a structure as explained in §151.027(D), existing at the
time of the adoption of this chapter, may be continued although the structure’s
size or location does not conform with the yard, dimensional, height, parking,
loading, access, lot area, and lot coverage provisions of this chapter. Such
structures are called substandard structures.

(2) Substandard structures with conforming uses may be added to or enlarged
provided that the enlargements comply with the yard, height, parking, loading,
access, and all other applicable requirements of this section for the district in
which such a structure is located.

(3) Substandard structures which are damaged or destroyed by fire, explosion, flood,
or other calamity, may be reconstructed and shall comply with the yard, height,
parking, loading, access, and all other applicable provisions of this chapter for the
district in which such structure is located unless the structure is situated on a
substandard lot of record, in which case the provisions concerning substandard
lots of record shall apply.

(4) A substandard structure may not be moved off the lot or lots on which it is
located unless when relocated it complies with the regulations for the district in
which it is located.

(B) Existing nonconforming uses. The lawful nonconforming use of a structure, land, or
water existing at the time of the adoption of this chapter may be continued except that:

(1) Only that portion of the land or water in actual use may be so continued and the
nonconforming use may not be enlarged or extended, nor may any additional
structures be added to be occupied by the nonconforming use, except that existing
cemeteries can expand to the boundaries of the property which they owned at the
time they became nonconforming;

(2) Normal maintenance, repair, and incidental alteration of a building occupied by a
nonconforming use is permitted provided it does not extend the nonconforming
use. A structure occupied by a nonconforming use may be changed to make the
structure more in character with the uses permitted in the district in which it is
located;

(3) If such nonconforming use is damaged by fire, explosion, flood, or other calamity
to the extent of more than 75% of its current equalized value, it shall not be
restored except so as to comply with the use provisions of this chapter;

(4) If such nonconforming use is discontinued or terminated for a period of more
than 365 days, any future use of the structure, land, or water supply shall comply
with the provisions of this chapter;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 30




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

(5) In addition, lots used for outdoor storage, salvage yards, used and abandoned
vehicle storage, repair and sales lots, auto wrecking yards and junk yards, where
the only buildings on the lot are incidental and accessory in the open use of the lot
and where such use was established legally but is not permitted to be established
as permitted, special, or conditional use, hereafter in the district in which it is
located shall be terminated and all sorted material and other inventory removed
from the site by the owners or occupants by December 31, 1998. The Zoning
Administration shall, within 90 days of the effective date of this chapter, send
notice of this requirement to the owner or occupants by first class mail;

(6) A nonconforming use may not be moved off the lot or lots on which is it located
unless when relocated it complies with the regulations for the district in which it
is relocated;

(7) The Board of Adjustment may permit as a special use a change in nonconforming
use provided that the requirements of divisions (B)(1) through (B)(6} above of
this section are met and the Board of Adjustment may require appropriate
conditions and safeguards in accordance with the provisions of this chapter;

(8) Once a nonconforming use has been changed or altered so as to comply with the
provisions of this chapter, it shall not revert back to a nonconforming use. Once
the Board of Adjustments has permitted the substitution of a more restrictive
nonconforming use for an existing nonconforming use, the substituted use shall
lose its status as a legal nonconforming use and become subject to all the
conditions required by the Board. If the structure occupied by a nonconforming
use is changed so as to be more in character with the uses permitted in the district
in which it is located, it shall not subsequently be changed to be less in character.

(C) Existing vacant substandard lots.

(1) Where the owner of a lot at the time of adoption of this chapter or his successor
in title thereto does not own sufficient land to enable him to conform to the lot
area or lot width requirements of this chapter, such a lot may be used as a building
site for a single-family residence in a district in which residences are permitted,
provided that the lot width and lot area are not more than 20% below the
minimum specified in this chapter, and further provided that the County Health
Department approves the reduction in on-site water or wastewater facilities are
involved. In cases where the lot area and lot width are more than 20% below the
minimum specified in this ordinance or other requirements cannot be met, the
Board of Adjustment is authorized to approve as a variance such dimensions as
shall conform as closely as possible to the required dimensions if the county
health department submits a letter of approval if on-site water or wastewater
facilities are involved. If the pre-existing substandard lot is not in a district where

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 31




CHAPTER 151: Zoning

single-family residences are permitted, the Board of Adjustments may issue a
variance to allow some reasonable use.

(2) If two or more adjoining and vacant lots are in one ownership when this chapter
is adopted, or at any time after the adoption of this chapter, and such lots
individually do not meet the minimum dimensional requirements of this chapter
for the district in which such lots are located, then such group of lots shall be
considered as a single lot or several lots of minimum permitted width and area for
the district in which located, and therefore, the provisions of §151.027©(1) do not

apply.

(D) Conforming uses and structures.

(1) Any use or structure existing prior to the effective date of this chapter which
conforms to the regulations of this chapter for permitted uses and satisfies the
dimensional requirements and any other applicable regulations of the district in
which it is located, may be continued, provided any changes shall comply with
the provisions of this chapter.

(2) Any structure or use existing prior to the effective date of this chapter which
would be permitted by this chapter as a special ercenditienal use in the district in
which it is located, may be continued as if a special or conditionaler-cenditienal
use permit had been applied for and issued, provided that any changes shall
comply with the provisions of this chapter.

(E) Effect of amendments. If subsequent amendments to this chapter or the official zoning
map result in the creation of additional nonconformities or conformities, such nonconformities or
conformities shall be governed by the provisions of this section unless otherwise stated in the
amendment.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.028 COMPLEXES.

Office centers, institutional and industrial, and similar complexes may have more than one
principal building on a single lot provided that the following requirements are met:

(A) Uses in complexes shall be limited to those permitted within the zoning district in which
the project is located;

(B) The overall intensity of land use shall be no higher, and the standard of open space no
lower, than that permitted in the district in which the project is located;

TOWN OF WARRENTCN - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 32




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

(C) The distance of every building from the nearest property line shall meet the front yard
setback and side yard requirements of the district in which the project is located or 50 feet,
whichever is greater;

(D) The building heights shall not exceed the height limits permitted in the district in which
the project is located;

(E) The buildings shall be located so as to provide access for emergency vehicles.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.029 REQUIREMENTS FOR STREET ABUTMENT.

No principal building, structure, or use may be erected or established on any lot which does
not abut at least 20 feet on one of the following:

(A} A public street dedicated to and maintained by the town or the North Carolina
Department of Transportation;

(B) A street constructed to the standards of the town or the North Carolina Department of
Transportation, with a written agreement concerning maintenance of the street.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.030 STORAGE OF JUNK ON VACANT LOTS.

Vacant lots shall not be used for the storage of used or abandoned vehicles or other outdoor
storage unless specifically permitted in §151.045.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.031 STREAM BUFFER AREAS REQUIRED.

(A) A minimum of fifty (50) foot vegetative buffer for development activities shall be
required along all perennial waters indicted on the most recent versions of U.S.N.C.G.S.
1:24,000 (7.4 minute) scale topographic maps or as determined by local government studies.
Desirable artificial streambanks or shoreline stabilization is permitted. The buffer is an area of
natural or planted vegetation through which storm water runoff flows in a diffuse manner so that
the runoff does not become channelized and which provides for infiltration of the runoff and
filtering of pollutants. The buffer shall be measured landward from the normal pool elevation of

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 33




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

impounded structures and from the bank of each side of streams of rivers. Within the 50°
riparian area, the first 30’ is to remain undisturbed, whereas the outer 20’ must be vegetated
only. Accessory structures shall not be allowed in the riparian buffer area.

(B) No new development shall be allowed in the buffer except for water dependent
structures. Other structures such as flagpoles, signs and security lights which result in only
diminutive increases in impervious area and public projects such as road crossing and green
ways where no practical alternative exists which shall be permitted. These activities should
minimize built-upon surface area, direct runoff away from the surface waters and maximize the
utilization of storm water Best Management Practices.

(C) Best Management Practices are structural or nonstructural management-based practices
use singularly or in combination to reduce nonpoint source inputs to receiving waters in order to
achieve water quality protection goals. A water dependent structure is any structure for which the
use requires access to or proximity to or siting within surface waters to fulfill its basic purpose,
such as boat ramps, boat houses, docks and bulkheads. Ancillary facilities such as restaurants,
outlets for boat supplies, parking lots and commercial boat storage areas are not water dependent
structures.

(D) Development, for the purposed of the section, is and land disturbing activity which adds
to or changes the amount of impervious cover on a land area or which otherwise decreases the
infiltration of precipitation into the soil.

(Ord. passed 9-19-99)

§151.032 Government Buildings.

All of the provisions of this ordinance are hereby made applicable to the erection,
construction, and use of buildings by the State of North Carolina and its political

subdivisions, as established in G.S §160D-913.

District Regulations
§151.040 OFFICIAL ZONING MAP.

(A) The boundaries of the districts are hereby established as shown upon the map
accompanying this chapter and made a part hereof, entitled “Official Zoning Map, Town of
Warrenton, North Carolina”. The zoning map and all the notations, references, and all
amendments thereto, and other information shown thereon is hereby made a part of this chapter
and the same as if such information set forth on the map were all fully described and set out

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 34




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

herein. The zoning map properly attested is on file in the Office of the Zoning Administrator and
Clerk to the Board and is available for inspection by the public.

The map shall be identified by the signature of the Mavor, attested by the Town clerk . and
bearing the official seal of the town of Warrenton under the following words: “This is to certify
that this is the official zoning map for the Town of Warrenton ., North Carolina.” The date of
adoption shall also be shown.

If, in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance ., changes are made in the zoning
district boundaries or other matter shown on the map, such changes shall be made together with
an entry on the map as follows: “ On (date) by official action of the Town Board the following
changes were made in the official zoning map: (brief description of nature of change)”. The entry
shall be signed by the Mayor and attested by the Town Clerk. The maps may be in paper or a
digital format as approved by the Town of Warrenton.

(B) In the creation, by this chapter, of the respective districts, the Board of Commissioners
has given due and careful consideration to the peculiar suitability of each and every such district
for the particular regulations applied thereto, and the necessary, proper, and comprehensive
groupings and arrangements of the various uses and densities of population in accordance with a
well-considered plan for the development of the town and its extraterritorial area.

(Ord. passed 12-18-65)

§151.041 UNCERTAINTY AS TO BOUNDARIES.

(A) The boundaries of such districts as are shown upon the map adopted by this chapter are
hereby adopted and the provisions of this chapter governing the use of land and buildings, the
height of buildings, the sizes of yards about buildings, and other matters as hereinafter set forth,
are hereby established and declared to be in effect upon all land included within the boundaries
of each and every zone shown upon said map.

(B) If uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of the use districts shown on the official zoning
map which is not resolved by the ordinance establishing and amending such boundaries, the
following rules shall apply:

(1) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerlines of streets,
highways, or alleys shall be construed to follow such centerlines;

(2) Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines shall be
construed as following such lot lines;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 35




CHAPTER 151: Zonine Codecs

(3) Boundaries indicated as approximately following governmental incorporation or
extraterritorial jurisdiction boundaries shall be construed as following such
jurisdictional boundaries;

(4) Boundaries indicted as approximately following the center of railroad lines shall
be construed to be midway between the main tracks or tracks;

(5) Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerlines of streams,
rivers, lakes, or other bodies of water shall be construed as following such
centerlines;

(6) Boundaries indicated as following shorelines shall be construed to follow such
shorelines, and if the shoreline is changed either naturally or as permitted by law,
such a boundary shall be construed as moving with the actual shoreline;

(7) Boundaries indicated as following the contours of certain elevations or soils of a
particular type shall be construed as following the actual height or soil contour as
determined by accepted surveying practices;

(8) Boundaries indicated as parallel to or extensions of natural or man-made features
indicated in divisions (B)(1) above of this sections shall be so construed;

(9) Distances not specifically indicted shall be determined by the scale of the official
Zoning map.

(C) Where uncertainties continue to exist after application of the above rules, appeal may be
taken to the Board of Adjustment as provided in §§151.109 and 151.110 of this chapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.042 AMENDMENTS TO ZONING MAP.

Amendments to the official zoning map shall be adopted by ordinance as provided in
§151.114. Promptly after the adoption of an amendment, the Zoning Administrator shall alter or
cause to be altered, the official zoning map to indicate the amendment. The Town Clerk shall
enter in writing upon the face of the map a certification indicating the alteration and citing the
date of adoption and the effective date of the amendment, as well as the book and page of record
of the ordinance amending the map.

The fees as stated in the schedule of fees shall apply to all rezoning requests in the Town of
Warrenton zoning jurisdiction. Fees shall be paid to the Town of Warrenton, North Carolina, for
each application for rezoning to cover the costs of advertising and updating the Official Zoning
Map of the town of Warrenton.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORBINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 36




CHAPTER 151: Zoning

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 37




CHAPFPTER 151: Zoning Codcs

§151.043 TRUE COPY TO BE MAINTAINED; REPLACEMENT AND
PRESERVATION.

(A) True copy to be maintained. The Chairman of the Planning Board shall also maintain a
true copy of the official zoning map which shall include thereon all matters shown on the official
zoning map. The true copy shall have no legal affect as provided in §151.043(B).

(B) Replacement and preservation of official zoning map and true copy thereof.

(1) If the official zoning map is damaged, lost, or destroyed in whole or in part, the
governing body may by resolution adopt the true copy in whole or in part as the
official zoning map, and the Zoning Administrator and Town Clerk shall
promptly prepare or cause to be prepared a new true copy of the official zoning
map. From time to time, the governing body may by resolution adopt a new
official zoning map of the prior map becomes difficult to interpret due to the
number of amendments or other matters shown thereon, or if the governing body
desires to replace the map for other reasons, provided that the new map is an exact
copy of the prior map. The new map shall bear the signatures of the current
Mayor and Town Clerk and shall bear the seal of the town under the following
words: This is to certify that this official zoning map supersedes and replaces the
official zoning map adopted (date of adoption of map replaced ).” The date of
adoption of the new official zoning map shall be shown also.

(2) The Zoning Administrator shall preserve any and all remaining parts of all prior
official zoning maps and true copies thereof together with all available records
pertaining to their adoption, amendment, or repeal.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.044 ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSES OF DISTRICTS.

For the purpose of this chapter, the zoning jurisdiction of the town is hereby divided into the
following districts:

(A) R-20 — Residential Agricultural District. The purpose of this district is to provide areas
for a compatible mixture of residential development and agriculture in areas outside the
corporate limits of the town;

(B) R-12 — Residential Single-Family District. The purpose of this district is to provide for
existing residential single-family homes and the establishment of new single family homes;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 38




(C) R-8 Single- and Multi-Family Residential District. The purpose of this district is to
provide for a compatible mixture of single-family dwellings, and multi-family buildings and
complexes and mobile homes;

(D) O&I Office and Institutional District. The purpose of this district is to provide areas
for office and institutional use, and to establish a buffer between residential areas and
commercial and industrial areas;

(E) C-1 Downtown Business District. The purpose of this district is to provide areas for
those retail trade and service purposes which are properly located in a downtown area;

(F) C-2 Highway Business District. The purpose of this district is to provide areas for
commercial and service uses which require larger sites than are available in the downtown areas,
or which serve the needs of the traveling public;

(G) I Industrial District. The purpose of this district is to provide locations for
manufacturing, wholesaling, and warehousing, uses which can be conducted without producing
harmful effects on the citizens of the area.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.045 REGULATIONS FOR RESIDENTIAL, AGRICULTURAL,
RESIDENTIAL-S BDIVISIO , SINGLE- AND MULTI-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS.

(A) Uses allowed in the districts named in this chapter shall be in accordance with the
following table in which “X” signifies that the use is permitted as of right “C™indicatesthatthe
e e-whichrequiresappre he Adiustment “S” indicates that
the use is a special use which requires the approval of the Board of Commissioners, and a blank
indicates that the use is not permitted in that zoning district.

Residential Districts Districts

Use R-20 R-12 RS
Single-family dwellings on individual lots D% X X
Two-family dwellings X X %
Three or four-family dwellings in one building s X
Multi-family dwellings and complexes s s

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tabhle of Contents index Page 39



Residential Districts Districts

Use R-20 R-I2 RS
Day nurseries

Kindergartens X
Public educational institutions and private schools having a X X

curriculum the same as ordinarily given in public schools
Public buildings; uses and utilities s
Solar collection installations or “solar farms”

Hospitals, clinics, except animal hospitals, nursing homes, rest X
homes

Any agricultural or horticultural use except commercial nurseries, X
commercial chicken house, yard or hatchery, dairy, livestock pen

or yard, horse or mule stable, pigpen or hog pen, or any other use

of land for keeping and raising animals or fowls for commercial
purposes. Non-commercial buildings or structures used for the
keeping of livestock, fowls, or other non-commercial use
permitted shall be located in the rear yard and shall not be located
closer than 50 feet from any property line

Churches, temples, synagogues X

Libraries X X
Museums X X
Cemeteries

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 40




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

Radio and TV stations and transmission telecommunication panm

towers -

Parks b% b% X

Residential Districts Districts

Bz R-20 |R-12 |R-8

Golf courses, excluding carpet or miniature X

Playgrounds X x X

Community centers P% cs cs
| Private clubs cs cs cs

Fraternal organizations not open to the public cs cs cs

Farming, including sale of product on property where produced X

Commercial plant nurseries and greenhouses X

Riding stables X

Planned unit development s s s

Temporary uses such as circuses, carnivals, fairs s s s

Other temporary uses S s s

Motels, hotels, and restaurants b%

Funeral homes X

Bed and Breakfasts. A Special Use Permit for Bed and Breakfast s s

will include the authority to serve meals, other than breakfast, to

registered guests and for catering of private functions such as |

business meetings and receptions. This use would exclude a

restaurant open to the public or the erection of an exterior sign

identifying the establishment as a restaurant.

Short Term Rental s 5 s

(Ord. passed 12-16-85, Amended 3-3-2008, Amended 4-10-2017)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF CRDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 41




(B) Minimum dimensional requirements shall be:

Minimum lot area in square feet -2 R-20 R-12 R-8

Single-family dwelling 20,000

Multi-family dwelling

Other proposed building or use

Minimum required yard in feet R-20 R-12 R-8
Single-family dwelling 80
Two-family dwelling 100
Multi-family dwelling 100 100
Townhouse 100
Other principal building or use 100
Minimum lot depth in feet 100

Minimum required yard in feet R-20 R-12 R-8
Front 30 30

10
Corner lot 15
Rear 25

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 42



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

Maximum height in feet 35 35 35

Maximum lot coverage in percent 40 40 40

' Where there is no public water and/or sewer, lots must meet requirements of the County
Health Department as well as the requirements of this chapter.

2 Stream buffers are required in accordance with §151.031 of this chapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85; Am. Ord. passed, 9-13-99; Am. Ord. passed 11-8-99)

§151.046 REGULATIONS FOR COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS.

(A) Table of permitted uses. Uses allowed in the districts named in this section shall be in
accordance with the following table in which “X” signifies that the use is permitted as of right,

L k] = ato ls o = N ats = h N Q) a Armrosro naH
8 A H 2 D H B8 d v

Adjustment; “S” indicates that the use is a special use which requires approval of the Board of
Commissioners, and a blank indicates that the use is not permitted in that zoning district.

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES

Commercial and Industrial Districts

Districts

Use
C-1 C-2 O&1 I

Any retail or wholesale business or service
establishment, or public use or utility which is enclosed
in a building and does not emit smoke, odor, dust, fumes,
glare, noise, or vibration from the building in which it is X X
located and does not involve bulk storage of volatile
materials or other fire hazards, except commercial

amusements

Offices — business, professional, and public X X X
Financial institutions X X X
Assembly halls X X X
Restaurants X X X
Shopping centers X X

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 43




Hotels and motels X

X
Car washes X
Amusement parks S

S
Family care homes (see residential districts) X

Commercial and Industrial Districts Districts
Use C-1 c-2 o0&l
Churches X X
Schools X
Retirement homes X X
Funeral homes X X X
Single family dwellings in one building S
S S X

Pool halls or billiard parlors cS
Grocery and convenience stores X X
Junk yards or salvage operations
Multi-family dwellings and complexes S S
Retail or wholesale businesses or service establishments,
wholesaling and warehouse storage or public uses or cs X

utilities other than those specifically listed which have
outdoor sales, service, or storage areas

Retail or wholesale businesses or service establishments,
wholesaling and warchouse storage or public uses or
utilities other than those specifically listed which would cS fal ~}
emit smoke, odor, dust, fumes, or noise from the building
in which they are located or involve possible fire hazards

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF CRDINANCES - Table of Contents

Index Page 44



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

Any manufacturing, processing, or warehousing use or
public use or utility which is enclosed in a building and
does not emit smoke, odor, dust, fumes, glare, noise or
vibration from the building in which it is located, except
acid manufacture, cement, lime, gypsum or plaster of
paris manufacture, distillation of bones, explosives,
manufacture or storage, fat rending, fish and/or fertilizer
plant, garbage, offal or dead animal reduction or
dumping, gas manufacture, glue manufacture, stockyards
or slaughter of animals, tannery, or pulp manufacture

Commercial and Industrial Districts Districts

Use C-1 -2 o&l

Public buildings, uses and utilities S S

Solar collection installations or “solar farms” S S

Cafeterias and snack bars for plant employees and offices
of plants shall be considered an accessory use.

No mobile home shall be used as an office in the C-2
Highway district.

Bed and Breakfasts. A Special Use Permit issued for Bed
and Breakfast will include the authority to serve meals,
other than breakfast, to registered guests and for catering
of private functions such as business meetings and
receptions. This use would exclude a restaurant open to
the public or the erection of an exterior sign identifying
the establishment as a restaurant.

(B) Dimensional requirements.

DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

C-1 C-2 o0&l

Minimum lot area in square feet 20,000 for site — more than one use can
be grouped on a site or in a building for
C-2 and O&I only.

20,000

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents

Index Page 45




100 100 100

150 150 150
*Minimum required yards in feet
Front 30 30 50
Side 10 10 20
Rear 25 25 25
Maximum lot coverage in percent 40 40 40
Maximum permitted height in feet 50 50 50 50

! Stream buffers are required in accordance with §151.031 of this chapter.

(Ord. passed 12 16-85; Am. Ord. passed 9-13-99; Am. Ord. passed 11-8-99; Am. Ord. passed 3-
14-2011; Am. Ord. passed 9-8-2014)

§151.060 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS.

{A) There shall be provided at the time of the erection of any building or the establishment
of any use or at the time any principal building or use is enlarged or increased in capacity by
adding dwelling units, guest rooms, seats, floor, storage or sales area; or before conversion from
one type of use or occupancy to another, permanent off-street parking in the amount specified by
this section. Such parking space may be provided in a parking garage or properly graded open
space.

(B) The following regulations concerning required parking shall apply:

(1) Each zoning permit application filed with the Zoning Administrator shall include
information as to the location and dimensions of off-street parking space and the
means of ingress and egress to such space. This information shall be in sufficient
detail to enable the Zoning Administrator to determine whether or not the
requirements of this section are met. No certificate of occupancy shall be issued
until the parking regulations are fully met;

(2) The required parking space for any number of separate uses may be combined in
one lot but the required space assigned to one use may not be assigned to another
use, except that one-half of the parking space required for churches, theaters, or
assembly halls whose peak attendance will be at night or on Sundays may be
assigned to a use which will be closed at night and on Sundays;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 46



(3) If the off-street parking space required by this chapter cannot be reasonably
provided on the same lot on which the principal use is located, such space may be
provided on any land within 400 feet of the main entrance to such principal use;

(4) Parking space sizes shall be governed by the following dimensions:

Paralleli stall 200x9.00
Angle stall 19’ x 8.5’
90 degree stall 19’ x 9.0

(5) Minimum aisle widths shall be:

Aisle Width in Feet

Parking Angle One-Way Traffic Two-Way Traffic
0-15 degrees 12
16-37 degrees 11 -
13 -
58-74 degrees 18 -
75-90 degrees 24 24

(6) A safe means of ingress and egress shall be provided for all parking spaces and
driveways for uses other than single and two-family residential and shall be at
least 24 feet wide

(7) When off-street parking for more than 20 vehicles is provided the following
regulations shall apply in addition to all other regulations in this subchapter:

{a) All such parking lots shall be graded and surfaced with compacted gravel,
blacktop, concrete, or other such surfacing material to ensure a dustless surface
condition;

(b) Each parking stall shall be marked off and maintained so as to be
distinguishable;

(c) Any lighting shall be so arranged as to direct the light and glare away from
the streets and adjacent property;

(d) All such parking lots shall observe a minimum front yard of not less than
five feet and a side yard on a corner lot of not less than five feet. Parking lots in

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 47



CHAPTER 151: Zoning

residential-agricultural and residential districts shall have front yards of not less
than 15 feet and side and rear yards of not less than five feet. Yards surrounding
parking lots shall be planted and maintained in lawn or other appropriate
planting or shall be improved otherwise in keeping with the character of
adjacent property, and a buffer as defined in §151.026 is not required, natural
planting, hedge, or a decorative fence to a height of at least six feet shall screen
the residential property;

(¢) The required yards shall be set off from parking areas by either continuous
curb or one non-continuous stationary bumper for each parking space abutting
on a yard, which curb or bumper shall not be less than five inches or more than
two feet high;

(f) Parking lots shall not drain onto or across public sidewalks, or into adjacent
property except into a natural watercourse or a drainage easement. In already
developed areas where this condition would be impossible to meet, the Zoning
Administrator may exempt the developer from this requirement, provided that
adequate provision is made for drainage;

(g) In the event any parking shall abuts upon a walkway, there shali be a space
of three and one-half feet between the wheel bumper or curb and the edge of the
walkway;

(h) On all comer lots, all vehicular openings shall be located at least 20 feet
from the point of intersection of the established street right-of-way lines. No
entrance or exit, whether on a corner lot or not, shall exceed 30 feet in width at
the property line or 40 feet at the curb line. There shall be a minimum distance
between driveways of 25 feet measured along the curb line unless such
driveways are less than five feet apart;

(1) Sufficient area shall be provided within the property lines of a parking lot,
exclusive of required yards, so that all vehicles may enter and leave the lot in a
forward motion;

(8) The following exceptions shall apply to the above regulations:

(a) The Zoning Administration may withhold a permit or certificate of
occupancy if a parking layout not specifically prohibited by this section would
be likely to cause avoidable safety or traffic congestion problems until
modification is made. The applicant may appeal the Zoning Administrator’s
decision to the Board of Adjustment under the normal procedure for an appeal,

(b) If a peculiar characteristic of an establishment makes the requirements in
this section clearly unrealistic, the Board of Adjustment may grant the applicant
a parking modification;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 48




(c) In the central business district, the Zoning Administration may allow a new
use to be established in an existing building even if all parking requirements of
this section cannot be met for the new use, provided that as much off-street
parking as can reasonably be provided is provided by the use, and no
foreseeable traffic congestion problems will be created.

{9) The minimum number of required off-street parking spaces shall be calculated as
provided in §151.060(B)(10). In the case of a building or use not expressly
provided for, the number of off-street spaces shall be the same as for a similar use
or inclusive category which is provided for. Where there is more than one use in a
single structure, or on a single tract, or two or more instances of the same use, the
minimum number of required off-street parking spaces shall be equal to the sum
of the requirements of the various uses, excepts for shopping centers which are
expressly provided for;

(10)The following shall be the minimum number of off-street parking spaces which
shall be provided:

Use Number of required Off-Street Parking Spac
Residential Uses

Dwellings, single and two- 2 per dwelling unit

family

Dwellings, multi-family 2 spaces for each dwelling unit plus 1 visitor space for each 4
dwelling units

Townhouses 2 spaces for each dwelling unit plus 1 visitor space for each 4

dwelling units

Group housing, such as 1.2 for each bedroom
boarding houses, dormitories,
and similar establishments

Mobile homes on individual 2 per mobile home
lots

Mobile home parks 2 spaces for each mobile home plus 1 visitor parking space for
each 4 mobile homes

Office and Institutional Uses

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 49



Use Number of required Off-Street Parking Spaces

Financial institutions

Hospitals 1 space for each 150 square feet of gross floor area or fraction
thereof
Libraries 1 space for each 200 square feet for use by the public or

fraction thereof

Museums and art galleries 1 space for each 800 square feet of gross floor area or fraction
thereof

4 times the maximum lawful number of occupants

6 for each doctor or dentist plus 1 for each other employee

Other Offices

1 for each 3 seats, plus 1 for each 100 square feet of floor area
used for assembly, but not containing fixed seats, or fraction
thereof

Schools and Colleges

2 for each 750 square feet of classroom floor area or fraction
thereof, plus 1 for each administrative office, plus
auditorium/gymnasium parking off applicable

5 for each 750 square feet of classroom floor area or fraction
thereof, plus 1 for each administrative office, plus
auditorium/gymnasiu  dormitory parking requirement if
applicable

Commercial Uses

5 per lane

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 50



CHAPTER 151: Zonin

Use Number of required Off-Street Parking Spaces
Tent Campground 1 for each campsite plus office parking requirement
Recreational vehicle 1 for each campsite plus office parking requirement
Campground
Car wash . 5 per wash lane

Golf course (not including
those accessory to multi-
family dwelling or hotels)

4 per hole

Hotel or motel

1.2 for each guest room plus requirement for restaurant or
other facilities if provided

Restaurant Drive-in or take-
out

Minimum of 15 spaces, plus 1 additional for each 50 square
feet of gross floor area or fraction thereof

Restaurant Other

1.2 for each 100 square feet of gross floor area or fraction
thereof

Service stations-Fuel,
Convenience

2 for each gas pump, plus 3 for each grease rack or similar
facility

Shopping centers (in lieu of
individual store parking
requirements)

5.5 per 1000 square feet of gross leasable area or fraction
thereof

Low generator retail and
service establishments such as
furniture, appliance,
household, equipment, carpet
and hardware stores, repair
shops including shoe repair,
contractors’ showrooms,
drapery, paint and wallpaper
upholstery, interior decorator,
motor vehicles sales, plant
nurseries

1 for each 500 square feet of gross floor area or fraction
thereof, including any outdoor sales area

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents

Index Page 51



Use Number of required Off-Street Parking Spaces

All other commercial uses 1 for each 200 square feet of gross floor area or fraction
such as retail stores, outlet thereof, including any outdoor sales area

stores, department stores,

discount stores, drug stores,

coin-operated laundries,

variety stores

Industrial Uses

Industrial and research uses, 1 for each employee on premises at any one time
warehousing, and very low

customer volume wholesaling

operations

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 52




CHAPTER 151: Zonin

§151.061 OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS.

(A} Loading space regulations. Every building or structure used for business, trade, industry,
or office and institutional purposes, shall provide loading space as indicated in this section. Each
loading space shall be no less than 15 feet in width, and 30 feet in depth. Each space shall also be
no less than 15 feet in height if such space is covered. It shall have access driveways to public
streets or alleys which driveways shall be at least 24 feet wide and with adequate turning radii
for the delivery vehicles customarily associated with the particular use. If there is not more than
one delivery and pick-up during the hours when a retail trade, office, or institutional
establishment is open to patrons, such space may be combined with the existing parking space on
the premises. Loading space shall be provided in accordance with the following schedule:

(1) Retail business. One space for each 20,000 square feet of gross floor area or
fraction thereof;

(2) Wholesale trade and industry. One space for each 10,000 square feet of gross
floor space or fraction thereof;

(3) Office and institutional uses including hotels and motels. One space for each
50,000 square feet of gross area or fraction thereof;

(4) Other miscellaneous loading space provision. As well as meeting the
requirements of §151.061(A)3), elementary, junior high, high schools,
kindergartens, nurseries, and day care centers shall also provide a safe place off
the street for the loading and unloading of children from automobiles and buses.

(B) Exceptions.

(1) Peculiar characteristic of a business. If a peculiar characteristic of an
establishment makes the requirements in this section clearly unrealistic, the Board
of Adjustment may grant the applicant a modification of the loading requirements
in regard to that particular establishment,

(2) New uses established. In the central business district, the Zoning Administrator
may allow a new use to be established in an existing building even if all loading
requirements of this section cannot be met for the new use, provided that as much
loading space as can reasonably be provided is provided by the use and traffic or
safety hazards will not be created.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 53




CHAPTER [51: Zoning

SIGNS
§151.075 COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS REQUIRED.

No sign or sign structure may be erected, posted, hung, painted, rehung, repainted, repaired,
replaced, changed, or maintained in any district except in compliance with this subchapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.076 GENERAL SIGN REGULATIONS.

(A) No sign or sign structure shall be erected or constructed to interfere with vision
clearance as defined in §151.023.0

(B) No ground sign structure may be placed in the right-of-way.

(C) Individual stores in a shopping center may not have separate ground sign structures. The
shopping center as a whole may display signs in accordance with this section.

(D) Signs and sign structures shall meet all requirements of the State Building Code.

(E) Signs and sign structures shall be maintained at all times in a state of proper repair, with
all braces, bolts, clips, guys, anchors, supporting frames, and fastening free from deterioration,
insect infestation, rot, rust, or loosening. All signs shall be kept neatly finished, with lettering
intact, and if of a type which requires painting, free from visible peeling or chipping.

(F) Obsolete signs and their supporting structures shall be removed within 90 days after they
have been made obsolete by reason of the activity, business, product, or usage which the sign
identifies or advertises being abandoned at the location to which to sign refers. This provision
does not refer to billboards, until the commercial use off the billboard for rent has ceased. An
extension of the 90 day time limit for removal may be granted by the Zoning Administrator for
reasonable cause.

(G) Iluminated signs shall be limited to those lighted from behind to silhouette letters and
internally illuminated and spotlighted signs. All illuminated and spotlighted signs shall be placed
so as to prevent the light rays, illumination, or glare from being cast directly on any building or
on traffic.

(H) Strings of light bulbs used in connection with commercial premises for commercial
purposes shall be limited to white, yellow, or bug repellant bulbs and shall not cause glare on
traffic or adjoining premises.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 54




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

§151.077 PROHIBITED SIGNS.
The following types of signs are expressly prohibited:

(A) Signs with moving, revolving, or rotating parts, or any sign which moves or gives an
illusion of movement, except for time and temperature units and traditional barber poles, shall be
prohibited in all districts;

(B) Signs with lights or illumination which flash, move, rotate, blink, flicker, vary in
intensity or color, or use intermittent electrical pulsations, except for time and temperature units;

(C) Signs which obstruct the view of or could be confused with any authorized traffic sign,
signal, or device or make use of the words “stop”, “look”, “danger”, or any other word, phrase,
symbol, or character in such a manner as to interfere with, mislead, or confuse traffic;

(D) Signs which openings required to be left uncovered or unobstructed by building codes,
the housing code, or other laws relating to buildings.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.078 OFF-SITE ADVERTISING SIGNS.

Off-site advertising signs (billboards) shall be permitted only as a special use in the industrial
district. The conditions in §151.113 are not applicable to off-site advertising signs. A special use
permit shall be granted provided the following conditions are met:

(A) The property on which the sign is to be located must be adjacent to an interstate or
federal aid primary highway;

(B) The sign must be located within 660 feet of the edge of the right-of-way of such
highway;

(C) The sign shall comply with all regulations of the State Department of Transportation and
with the North Carolina General Statutes;

(D) No two structures shall be placed less than 500 feet apart. Distance shall be measured as
specified in the North Carolina Administrative Code T19A:02E.0200;

(E) The sign will be compatible with the general neighborhood in which it is located and
will not have a detrimental effect on adjoining properties.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tahle of Contents index Page 55




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

§151.079 NONCONFORMING SIGNS.

Nonconforming signs, when removed for other than normal maintenance, may not be erected
again, nor may any such sign be replaced with another nonconforming sign.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.080 PERMITTED SIGNS.

Signs shall be permitted in accordance with the table below.

Type of Sign Maximum | Maximum District Other Requirements
Size Height

Advertising, off-site | See Special use in I See §151.078

(billboards) §151.078

Agricultural, 32sq.ft. | 8 feet Permitted use in

advertising products R-20 and I

produced on

premises

Awning, silk- N/A N/A Permitted use in

screened or sewn on C-1,C-2,1 & O&l

front of awning

Bulletin board, 32sq. ft. | 8 feet Permitted use in

church or public all districts

Canopy signs (may | 4 sq. ft. Permitted use in Identification only. 1 per

also be placed on C-1,C-2, 1 & O&I | establishment

non-raising entranceway. Bottom of

marquees) sign must be 7 feet above
sidewalk level — more
over public right-of-way
if required by town
regulations

Construction site 64 sq. fi. 12 feet Permitted use in Must be removed when

placards all districts construction has been
completed

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF QRDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 56




CHAPTER 151: Zoning

Type of Sign Maximum | Maximum District Other Requirements
Size Height
Directional signs containing no advertising matter

Traffic, safety, Permitted use in

utility warning, all districts

public

L S
Pedestrian, public Permitted use in

all districts

Traffic and Permitted use in
pedestrian, private i all districts
No trespassing Permitted use in

all districts

Off-site directional 12 sq. fi. Permitted use in
to churches, meeting ' all districts
halls, civic clubs

Temporary 4 sq. ft. Permitted use in
directional to garage  all districts
sales and similar |

events in residential
areas, excluding
portable commercial

signs

Entrance or 32 sq. ft. 8 feet Permitted use in | No more than 2 per
monument-type all districts entrance allowed
signs to
subdivisions,
neighborhoods,
public, commercial,
industrial,
institutional
establishments and
mobile home parks

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 57




Type of Sign

The flag, pennant, or
insignia of any
nation, state, county,
city, religious, civic
of fraternal
organization or
educational
institution, when not
in connection with a
commercial
promotion, or as an
advertising device or
as an integral part of
another sign

Ground signs

Ground signs

House numbers

Memorial signs,
tablets, name of
building and date of
construction

Maximum Maximum

Size Height
10sq. ft. 9 feet
15 sq. ft.
150sq. ft. 35 feet
40 sq. ft. 20 feet
4 sq. fi.

Name of occupant of 2 sq. fi.

residential premises

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents

District

Permitted use in
all districts

Permitted use in [

Other Requirements

In R-20, R-12, and R-8
districts, wall and
projecting insignia may
not exceed size nor may
they project more than 9
feet from wall at farthest
point.

In O&I business and
industrial districts,
insignia may be placed
on signs permitted in
those districts.

In any district, flags or
pennants shall not exceed
15 square feet or, if on a
pole, one-fourth height of
a pole, whichever gives
the flag the greater
permitted area

Must be cut into a
masonry surface or case
of metal and affixed flat
against a surface

Index Page 58



CHAPTER 151:

Zoning

Type of Sign Maximum | Maximum District Other Requirements
Size Height
Newspaper names Permitted use in
on newspaper tubes all districts
No vacancy signs Permitted use in
all districts
T
Political signs (refer | 4 sq. ft. Must be removed within
to G.S5.136-32 15 days after last election
regarding temporary to which they pertain
political signs in
NCDOT controlled
right of ways)
Portable signs, 32sq. ft. | 10 fee Permitted use in | Nonrenewable permit
including any signs C-1,C-2,1 from Zoning
mounted on a Administrator required.
vehicle or a trailer or 20 day time limit. No
trailer-type device ! more than 1 sign per
establishment per street
frontage. Same
establishment may not
have temporary signs
again for 30 days after
removal of such signs.
Such signs shall not have
colored flashing lights or
lights which cause glare
on traffic or adjacent
properties. Such signs
shall not be located on
the public nght-of-way
nor obstruct vision
clearance as indicated in
§151.076(A)
T
Professional or 4 Permitted use in | One per establishment
announcement signs all districts
Projecting signs 20 Permitted use in | Sign may be no more

C-1,C-2,1

than 9 feet from wall at
farthest point. 1 such sign
per face on street, or 2
per establishment,
whichever is less. Such
sign may be hung on

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents

Index Page 59



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

Type of Sign Maximum | Maximum District Other Requirements
Size Height

corner of building but
shall count against the
maximum number
allowed above.

Establishment may not
also have a wall or roof
sign on same face as

projecting sign.
Comer sign shall count as
one face.
Real estate signs 6 Permitted
use in
residential
and R-20
districts
32 Permitted
use in C-1,
C-2,1
Religious symbols at Permitted use in
formal places of all districts
worship

Roof signs — see

wall signs
Service station signs, Permitted use in
automobile and truck all districts when

accessory to a
service station

Signs on racks for the orderly
display of engine oil, provided
such signs are no longer than the
rack

Signs on pumps and/or pump
islands concerning the type and
price of the fuel

Signs on open portable tire racks
provided the signs are no longer
than the rack

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 60




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

A sign may be painted on the inside and
outside front door face of the closed tire
rack, but shall not be painted on the sides

or rear
One double-faced on-site advertising 20 5
sign per street frontage showing the
current price of fuel sold on the
premises. Such sign shall be located off
the right-of-way
Temporary banners, pennants, streamers, Permitted Only for opening of new
excluding portable comimercial signs use in C-1, business. May remain for
C-2,1 no more than 4 weeks.

Temporary signs relating to farm 20 Permitted Off-site. No more than 1
auctions, agricultural production sales, off- use in all per lot. On-site. No more
annual charitable civic or fraternal site districts. than 3 per lot. May remain
events, excluding portable commercial for no more than 45 days
signs. ' in all.

32 i

on-

site
Vending machine signs painted or Permitted
mounted on the machine related to the use in all
products in the machine; bank machine districts
or book depository signs which instruct
customers or patrons

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 61




Wall or 1.25 square Such signs Permitted Wall signs must be

roof feet of sign shall not use in C-1, mounted on area of
signs area  per project over C-2, I, wall free of
running the roofline 0&l windows, doors, or
foot of of the other  architectural
building building to features.
frontage which they

Only one wall, roof,
or projecting sign per
establishment per
street frontage is
permitted other than
those specifically
mentioned elsewhere
in this table.

are attached.

Such signs may be
used only for
identification or on-
site advertising and
at least 80% of sign
face shall be for

identification.
Window Permitted
signs use in C-1,
C-2,1

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

MOBILE HOMES AND MOBILE HOME PARKS

§151.090 MOBILE HOMES ON INDIVIDUAL LOTS.

Mobile homes on individual lots shall be a permitted use where indicted in §151.045. All
requirements for the location of a single-family dwelling on an individual lot shall be met. Any mobile
home constructed before July 1, 1970 must be approved by Underwriters’ Laboratories and any mobile
home constructed after that time must meet all applicable state and federal standards. All mobile homes
shall be tied down in accordance with the state regulations for mobile homes and modular housing. All
County Health Department requirements shall be met. The following additional conditions must also be
met:

WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 62




i (A) Exterior finishes shall be in good repair and in no case shall the degree of reflectivity of the
exterior siding, foundation skirting, and roofing, exceed that of gloss white paint;

I (B) A continuous, uniform foundation enclosure, unpierced except for required ventilation and
access, shall be installed. The enclosure may consist of brick or concrete block, or wood, vinyl, or metal
fabricated for this purpose. Any wood framing for foundation skirting shall be constructed with treated
lumber;

l (C) Permanent steps shall be constructed at all exterior doors as necessary and a permanent porch or
patio measuring at least three feet in width and five feet in length shall be constructed at the front or main
entrance to the mobile home,

(D) The running lights shall be removed and the hitch shall either be removed or screened with shrubbery;

(E) At least two off-street parking spaces shall be provided,

(F) All areas not used for parking, mobile home, or required porches, shall be grassed or otherwise
suitably landscaped to prevent erosion;

(G) All standards must be met prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.091 MOBILE HOME PARKS.

For purpose of this chapter, a mobile home park shall be defined as a lot or parcel of land of at least
five acres.

(A) Plan approval. Before any lot or parcel of land is to be used as a mobile home park, a certificate
of zoning compliance for such use shall be issued based on the development plan for the park with its
proposed methods of water supply and sewerage disposal approved by the appropriate agencies,
including the County Health Department, the Division of Health Services, Department of Human
Resources, Office of Water and Air Resources, Department of Natural Resources and Community
Development, and a site plan reviewed by the county Soil and Water Conservation District, shall be
approved by the Town Board upon recommendation of the Town Planning Board. The plan shall inciude
among other things:

(1) Location of drives, walks, street lighting, water and sewer systems, mobile home plots;
(2) Location and size of service buildings and areas, recreation buildings and areas;

(3) Location and type of screening fences or hedges, and storage areas;

(4) Location and number of parking spaces;

(5) Location and description of any other structure or improvement of the land,

(6) Topographic features

FWARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 63




(B) Design standards.

(1) Each mobile home shall be on a plot at least 8,000 square feet in area.

(2) Each mobile home plot shall be located at least 25 feet from any other structure, other mobile homes,
property line, or plot line.
| (3) Each mobile home plot shall be provided parking spaces for at least two automobiles, covered with
gravel or other suitable material, either on the lot or within 300 feet of the lot.

| (4) Each mobile home plot shall contain a walkway covered with gravel or other suitable material from the
parking spaces to the patio.

(5) All streets, roads, or drives located in the park must have a minimum right-of-way of 40 feet and must be
paved or properly paved by gravel as determined by the town.

{6) All mobile homes must have direct access through a driveway, private drive or other public street to a
public right-of-way.

(71 All streets, private drives, and the like more than 250 feet in length must be lighted at night.

(C) Operating requirements. Each mobile park shall operate in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the County Health Department and the fire protection agency having jurisdiction of the

park.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.092 TELECOMMUNICATION TOWERS

{A) Special Use for Telecommunication Tower Permit Application and Other Reguirements.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 and North Carolina General Statute Chapter 160D, Article 9, Part 3
affirms the Town'’s authority concerning the placement , construction and modification of wireless facilities

and wireless support structures. No person shall be permitted to site, place, build construct, modify, or

prepare_any site for the placement or use of, wireless telecommunications facilities without having first

obtained a special use permit for telecommunication tower or zoning permit. In the event that the Town
receives an application for a gualified a Small Wireless Facility as that term is defined by G.S. 160D-931 or
47CFR § 1.6002, the Town shall process and adjudicate such application in accordance with applicable state
and/or federal law, including but not limited to Orders and Rule makings of the Federal Communications

Commission.

a) An application for a special use permit or zoning permit for wireless telecommunications facilities
shall be signed on behalf of the applicant by the person preparing the same and with knowledge of
the contents and representations made therein and attesting to the truth and completeness of the

WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents




information. The | ndowner if diffe ent than the a  icant shall alsosi thea lication, At he
discretion of the Town an false or misleadin statement in the a lication ma subect the
a licant to denial of the a lica ion without furt er considera ic oro ortunit for correct on.

b A lications not meetin the e uwirements stated herei or which are otherwise incom lete ma be
returned b the Count with deficiencies no ed.

¢ Alla lications for the constructio or instal atio of new wire ess telecommunications facilities
shall contain the information hereinafier set forth. Thea  icat'on shal besi edb an authorized
individual on behalf of the a  lican . Where a certifica i0 is called for such certification shall
bear the si nature and seal of a Professio al En i eer licensed n the State. Thea lication shall

include the following information:

1 Documentation tha demonstrates the need for he wireless elecommunicat’ons facilit
to rovide service withi the Count and surroundin counties. Such documentation
shall include ro a ation studies of the ro osed s'te and all ad'oinin  lanned

ro osed in-service or ex’stin  sites

| The name address and hone number of the e so re arin there ort

m  The name address and hone number ofthe ro e owner o erator anda 1cant
and to include the ¢ a form ofthea licant
The tax ma and arcel numbe ofthe ro ert -

v The zonin district or desi natio in which the ro ert ’ssiuaed-

v Size of the ro ert stated both in s uare fee and lot 1ne dimensions and a ia am
showin the location of all lot lines® This re uirement is waived 1if co-locatin  on an
existin tower ori inall desi ned and constructed to su  ort antennae.

vi  The location of nearest residential structure: This re u're enti waived if co-l at'n
on an existin tower ori inall desi ned and constructed to su  ort antennae.

vit  The location size and hei ht of all structures on the ro ert which is the sub’ect of the
a lication This re uirement is wa'ved if co-locatn o an existin tower ori inall
desi ned and constructed to su  ort antennae

X  The location sizeand h i h ofall ro osed a d existi antennae and all a urtenant
structures’

X The t e locations and dimensions of all o osed a d existin landsca 1 and
fencin * If co-locatin on an existin tower and there is ‘nsu ficient area to insta
re uired screenin due to a chan e ‘nl ndsca in e uired b the Zonin Ord ance
waiver shall be anted u o documentation of such

xt  The number t e and de 1 n of the tower s and antenna s ro osed and theb s for
the calculations of the towe ’s ca acit to accommodate multi le users'

xi  The make model and m nufactu er of the tower and antenna s

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 65




xit A descni tion of the ro osed tower and antenna s and all related fixtures structures
a urtenances and a aratus includin hei tabove re-existin  ade materials color

and lighting:
xiv. The fre uenc modulation and class of service of radio or other transmittin

equipment;

xv  The actual intended effective radiated ower and the maximum desi ed-for effective
radiated ower of the antenna s ex ressed in watts

x1  Direction of maximum lobes and associated radiation of the antenna s -

xvi  Certification that the NIER levels at the ro osed site are within the threshold levels
ado tedb the FCC-

xvin Certification that the ro osed antenna s will not cause interference with other
telecommunication devices;

xx Aco ofthe FCClicensea licable for the intended use of the Wireless
Telecommunications Facilities;

d Thea licant shall certif that the wireless telecommunication facilit foundation and
attachments are desi  ed and will be constructed to meet all local Count State and
Federal structural re uirements for loads includin wind and ice loads. This shall be
re uired onl at the time of a lication for a buildin  ermit. A licants shall
acknowled e this re uirement inthea lication for a s ecial use or zonin  ermit,

¢ Thea licant shall certif that the wireless telecommunications facilities will be effectivel
ounded and bonded so asto rotect ersonsand ro ert and are installed with
a ro riate sur e rotectors. This shall be re uired onl at the time of a lication for a
buildin ermit. A licants shall acknowled e this re uirement in the a lication for a
s ecial use or zonin  ermit.

An applicant will be required to submit an environmental assessment analysis and a

visual addendum. Based on the results of the analysis, including the visual
addendum, the Planning and Zoning Board may require submission of a more

detailed visual anal sis. If co-locatin  a wireless facilit on an existin tower
originally designed and constructed to support antennae, and the proposed wireless
facility does not increase the height of the existing tower, this requirement shall be waved.

The a licant shall furnish a visual im act assessment which shall include:

I Pictorial re resentations of “before and after” views from ke view oints both inside and
outside of the Town as may be appropriate, including but not limited to state highways and

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tabie of Contents Index Page 66




other ma or roads' state and loca arks® other ublic lands' histonic districts® reserves and
his oric sites normall o en to the ublic a d from an o her location where the site is visible
to a lar e number of visitors travelers or res dent .

An assessment of the v'sua im act of the tower base wires cablin a d accessor
buildin s from abuttin and ad acent ro erties and stree as re ates to the need or
a 1o nateness of screenin .

If co loca in  a wireless facilit on an ex’stin tower ori inall desi ned and constructed to su  ort
antennae and the ro osed w eessfac’ 't does notincrease the hei h of the existin tower this
re uireme t shall be waived.

All wireless telecommunications facilities shall contain a demonstration that the facilit be
sited so as to be the least visuall and h sicall intrusive means that is not technolo icall
im racticable and thereb have the least adverse visual effect on the environment of the
nei borhood and the Town and its character on existin ve etation and on the residences in
the eneral area of the wireless telecommunications facilit . If co locatin a wireless facilit
on an existin tower on inall desi ned and constructed to su ort antennae and the

ro osed wireless facilit does not increase the hei ht of the existin tower this re uirement
shall be waived.

h Both the wireless telecommunications facilit and an and all accessor or associated
facilities shall maximize the use of buildin materials colors and textures desi ed to blend
wih the structure to which it ma be affixed and or to harmonize with the natural
surroundin s this shall include the utilization of stealth or concealment technolo asma b

re uired b the Town. If co- ocatin a wireless facilit on an existin tower ori inall

desi ned and constructed to su ort antennac and the ro osed wireless facilit does not
increase the hei ht of the existin tower this re uirement shall be waived.

A erson who holds a s ecial use or zonin  ermit for wireless telecommunications
acilities shall construct o erate maintain re air rovide for removal of modif or restore
the ermitted wireless telecommunications facilities in strict com liance with all current
a licable technical safet and safet -related codes ado ted b the Town Count State o
United States includin  but not limited to the most recent editions of the national
electrical safet code and the nationa electrical code as well as acce ted and res onsibl
workmanlike indust  ractices and recommended ractices of the National Association of Towe
Erectors. The codes referred to are codes hat include but are not limited to construction buildin
electrical fire safet health and land use codes. In the event of a conflict between or amon an o

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORBDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 67



the recedin the more strin ent shalla |

" An a licant shall submit to the Zonin Administrator ten 10 com leted a lications four
4 weeks rior to the Plannin and Zonin Board hearin .

k The a licant shall examine the feasibilit of desi in a ro osed tower to accommodate
future demand for at least four 4 additional commercial a lications for exam le future co-
locations. The tower shall be structurall desi ned to accommodate at least four 4 additional
antenna arra s e ual to those of the a licant and located as close to the a licant’s antenna as

ossible without causin interference. This re uwirement ma be waived rovided that the
a licant in writin demonstrates that the rovisions of future shared usa e of the tower is not
technolo icall feasible or creates an unnecessar and unreasonable burden basedu on:

1 The foreseeable number of FCC licenses available for the area
2 The kind of wireless telecommunications facilities site and structure ro osed
3 Availlables aceonexistin anda roved towers.

If co-locating a wireless facility on an existing tower, originatly designed and constructed to support
antennae and the ro osed wireless facilit does notincrease the hei ht of the existin tower this

re uirement shall be waived.

] The owner of the ro osed new tower and his/her successors in interest shall ne otiate
in ood faith for the shared use of the ro osed tower b other wireless service roviders
in the future, and shall:

4 Res ond within 60 da s to are uest for information from a otential shared-use
a licant

5 Ne otiate in ood faith concernin future re uests for shared use of the new tower b
other telecommunications roviders-

6 Allow shared use of the new tower if another telecommunications rovidera eesin

writin to a reasonable char es.

WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 68




4 The holder or a  icant of a s ecial use for telecommunica ion tower or zo In
ermtt shall oti he ow ofan intended mod catio of a w reless telecommunication
acility

andshala tothe Tow tomod  relocate or rebu’ld a wireless telecom un’ca ions
facility.

m In order to bet er nform the ubic 'nthecaseofan wtower thea licant shall riorto
the ublic hearin on the ication hold *balloon tes ”. If co-locatin a wireless facil't on
an existin tower ori inall desi ed and constructedto u ort nennae and the ro osed
wireless facilit does not increaseth h  ht of the exis n towe t 1s e uirement shall be
waived. The a licant shall arran etofl orra'seu onatem ora mast aminimum ofa
three 3 foot in diameter bri htl colored balloon at the maximum hei t ofthe ro osed new
tower. The a licant shall inform the Planmin De artment 'n writin of the dates and times
of the test at least fourteen 14 d sin advance The balloon shal be flown for at east four
4 consecutive hours sometime between 7 00 am and 4.00 m on the dates chosen. The
rima date shall be on a weekend b in case of 0o weather on hein'tial date the
secondary date may be o _a weekd v

n Thea l'cantwi rovide a written co of an anal sis com letedb a ualified
individual or or amzation to determine if the tower or existin structure in ended to su  ort
wireless facilities re uiresli tin under Federal Aviation Administration Re ula ‘on Part 77.
This re uirement shall be for an new tower or for an existin structure o buildin where he
a lication increases the hei ht of the structure or buildin . If this anal sis determines tha the
FAA must be contacted then all filin s with the FAA all res onses from he FAA and an relate
corres ondence shall be rovided in a timel manner. If co-locatin a wireless facilit on an
existin tower ori inall desi ed and constructed to su ort antennae and the ro osed wireless
facilit does not increase the hei t of the existin tower this re uireme t shal be waived.

o A lications shall be submitted in a 3 in binder. The a lication shall contain a table
of contents which shall list each section and subsection and the issue re ui ed to be addressed.
Re uests for waiver shall be clearl set forth and indicated in the table of contents with an
ex lanation for the re uest for waiver contained in the a ro riate section oft ea lication.
Each issue or matter addressed in the Ordinance that re uires ares o se shal be set forth ina
se arate section 1.e.tab inthea lication includin re uests for waiver

A licants shall a ee to make towers available foruseb Cou t Emer e ¢
Service agencies.

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Cantents Index Page 69




A fee as stated in the schedule of fees shall be aid to the Town of Bunn North
Carolina for each -special use permit for telecommunication tower permit application to cover the

related administrative and advertisin ex enses associated with telecommunication tower
location.
{B) Location of Wireless Telecommunications Facilities.

a A licants for wireless telecommunications facilities shall locate site and erect said wireless
telecommunications facilities in accordance with the followin riorities one 1 bein thehi hest
riorit and two 2 bein the lowest riorit .

1) _On existing structures;

ii) On properties zoned R-20);

b Ifthe ro osedsiteisnotthehi est riorit listed above then a detailed ex lanation must be
rovided asto wh asiteofahi er riorit was not selected, The erson seekin such an
exce tion must satisfactoril demonstrate the reason or reasons wh such a ermit should be
anted for the ro osed site and the hardshi that would be incurred b thea licant if the ermit
were not  anted for the ro osed site.

¢ Ana licantma notb asssitesofhi er riorit b statin thesite ro osedisthe onl site
leased or selected. An a lication shall address co-location as the reference of the Town. If such
ano tionisnot ro osed thea licant must ex lain to the reasonable satisfaction of the Town
wh co-location is im racticable. A eements between roviders limitin or rohibitin co
location shall not be a valid basis for any claim of hardship.

d Notwithstandin the above the Townma a rovean site located within an area in the above list
of riorities rovided that the Town finds that the ro osed site is in the best interest of the health
safet and welfare of the Town and its inhabitants and will not have a deleterious effect on the
nature and character of the communit and nei borhood or the site is a ublic necessit .

¢ Thea licant shall submit a written re ort demonstratin thea licant’s review of the above
locations in order of riorit demonstratin the technolo ical reason for the site selection. If
appropriate, based on selecting a site of lower priority, a detailed written explanation as to why

sites of ahi er rorit were not selected shall be included with thea lication.

WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 70



C. Shared use of Wireless Telecommunicat'ons Facilities and other structures.

The Town shall alwa s refer locatin on existin towers or others structures aso osed to the constructio
of a new tower. The a licant shall submit a com rehensive re ortinvento in all existin towers and all
other suitable structures that are within four 4 miles of the locatono an ro osed new tower unless the
a licant can show that some other distance is more reasonable and demonstrate conclusivel wh an
existing tower or other suitable structure cannot be used.

D. Hei ht of Telecommunications Tower s .

a The A licant shall submit docu nentation ‘usti 1n the total hei ht ofan tower Faci1
and or antenna and the basis therefore. Such documentation will be anal zed in the context of the
‘ustification of the minimum hei tneeded to rovide service to an area that is without service that i
within the Town and surroundin area to the extent racticable unless ood cause is shown.

b If the need for a new tower can be roven the maximum ermitted hei ht of a new tower sha
be the minimum needed to accommodate five 5 carriers takin in to account the nei hborin tree
hei htorthehei tofan nearb obstruction that would effectivel block the si nal in that directio
No tower shall exceed two hundred and fift 250 feetintotal hei tincludin antennae and
su ortin antennae structures. All towers shall be desi  ed to the maximum hei tof 250 feet b t
shall be constructed onl to the minimum hei ht needed to accommodate five 5 carriers.

c No Wire ess Facilit constructed after the effective date of this Ordinance includin allowin
for all attachments shall exceed tha hei ht which shall ermit o eration without re wred artificial
li htin ofan k'nd in accordance with munici al Count State and or an Federal statute law
local law Count o di ance cod ruleorre lation.

A earance and Visib it of Wireless Telecommunications F ¢'l t'es.

a Wireless Te ecommunicat ons Facilities sha o be artificiall ted or marked exce tas
re uired b Law.

b Towers shal be alvanized or ainted w't arust reventive aintofana ro riate co orto
harmonize with the surrou din s and shall be m intained in acco dance with there ire ents
of this O d nance and an conditio s of the conditional use or telecommunication towers or
zonn ermi

¢ Ifli htin isre wired a ican sha ovide a detailed lan for cient i htin of as
nobtrusive and inoffensive an effec asi1s erm’ i1be der Stat and Federal re ulations.

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents



d) Towers shall be limited to monopole-. mast-, or lattice structures only. Guved towers shall not
be permitted.

e Landsca in shall be re uired around the erimeter of the secured area. Such landsca in
shall at a minimum com | with the Warrenton Zonin Ordinance standards for landsca e
buffers and screenin ' ' ) ) ) ’ '

{F}. Security of Wireless Telecommunications Facilities.

All Wireless Telecommunications Facilities and antennas shall be located fenced or otherwise secured in a
manner that prevents unauthorized access. Specifically:

a All antennas towers and other su ortin structures wires and cablin shall be made
inaccessible to unauthorized individuals and constructed or shielded in such a manner that the
cannot be climbed or collided with and

b Transmitters and Telecommunications control oints shall be installed in such a manner that
the arereadil accessible onl to rsons authorized to o erate or service them.

¢ All fencin shall be in harmon and concert with the nature and character of thenei  borhood
and be maintained in a manner so as to retain its ori inall installed a earance. In no case
shall barbed wire fencin be installed or used in a residential district.

(G). Signage,
Wireless Telecommunications Facilities shall contain a sign no larger than four {4) square feet in order to

rovide ade uate notification to ersons in the immediate area of the resence of an antenna that has
transmission capabilities and shall contain the name(s) of the owner{s) and operator{s) of the antenna(s) as
well as emer enc  hone number s . The si n shall be on the e ui ment shelter or cabinet of the a licant and

be visible from the access point of the site and must identify the equipment owner of the shelter or cabinet.

The sign shall not be lighted, unless lighting is required by applicable law, rule or regulation. Advertising or

other si ns unrelated to the safet of the facilit shall not be ermitted.

{H). Lot Size and Setbacks.

All proposed towers and any other proposed wireless telecommunications facility structures shall be set back
from abuttin  arcels recorded ri hts-of-wa existin or ro osed structures and road and street linesb the
greater of the following distances: A distance equal to the height of the proposed wireless telecommunications
facilit structure lustwent ercent 20% of the hei ht of the facilit or structure or the existin setback

re uirement of the underl in zonin district whicheveris reater.

WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 72




Retention of Ex ert Ass stance

The Town ma hire an consultant and or ex ert necessa to asstst the Town in reviewin and evaluat'n the
a haion includ'n he construction and modifica ion of the site once ermitted and an re uests for re
certif catio

xce t'onsfroma$ ecia Use m'tfo Telec m nicat on Towers Perm for Wi el s
Teleco mu ‘cat’'ons Faci ities

a No ersonshalbe ermi edto ‘te lace build construct modi or re aean siefo he
lacement or use of wireless telecommun cations facilities as of t e effective date of his O d nance
without havin first obt ined a s ecial use ermit for a telecommun ca on tower or

zonin  ermit for wi eless telecommun’cat ons fac’ ities. Notwithstandin an th'n tothecontra i th's
section nos ecia use e mitshall be re uired for those non-commercial exce tions noted in the def nit
of wireless telecommunications faci ‘ties. Zonin  ermitsma a | to non commercial exce tions noted
the def'nition of wireless te ecommunicatio s fac 1 ies.

b All w'reless telecommu ications facilities existin 0 o before the effective date of this
Ordinance shall be allowed to con inue as he resentl exis  ovided however that an visible
modification of an existin wireless telecommunication facilit m s com | with his Ordinance.

Administra ive Review

A lication t at uali foradm ~ ative review are sub’ect to re uirements of this Ordinance a d
include:

a A Installin an antenna n an existin non-residential structur other than a tower such as a
buildin s1 n li t ole water tower utilit ole or other free-standi  non-residential structure 1n
an commercial or industrial dist "ct that is less than 50 feet in hei tso lon as such addition does not
add more tha 10 fect to the hei ht of the exis in structure.

Insta lin an antenna on an existin tower of an hei ht includin a re-existin tower and
urther includ n the lacement of additional b ildin s or other su ortin e ui ment used in
connection with said antenna sol n as the addition of said antenna adds no more han twent
20 feet to the hei ht of the existin tower.

c Re lacin an existin tower which adds no more han 10 feet to the overall ei h of the
existin struc re withonl 1 re lacement a lowed,
d Insta lin a antenna on an existin  structure other than a tower such as a buildin  si n

ole water tower or other f ee s andin  non residential structure that is moretha fft 50 feet1 hei
so lon as such add” "on does not add more thantwent 20 feettot e her hto the exis in structu e.

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Cantents index Page 73



Note:

An increase in tower or structure height shall only be allowed once and any additional proposed increases
shall require a Special Use Permit for a Site Plan Amendment. In the event that an increase in tower or
structure height would require that an existing unlighted tower be lighted, a Special Use Permit shall be

required for a Site Plan Amendment,

{L). Public Hearing Exemptions.

There shall be no public hearing required for an application for a Zoning Permit to co-locate on an existing tower

or other structure, as long as it meets the provisions of this section.

WARRENTCON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 74




{M). Performance Secur ty.

Thea licant and the owner of record ofan o osed wireless te ecommunica 1ons
facilities ro ert siteshall at'tscostandex e e be ointl re uredtoexecut and
file with the Town a bond, renewable letter of credit, or other form of security

acce table tothe Townastot e ofsecurit and he form and manner of execution in

anamount o at easttwent five 25 ercent of the towers construct’on cost. The full
amount of the bond or secur't shall remain full force nd effect throu hout the

te mo hes eci luseorzonin  ermitand oru tilan necessa site restorationis
com leted to restore the site to a condition com arable to that wh'c ex'sted rior to
the issuance of the ori 'nal conditional use or zon’ ermi

N . Reservation f hori olns ectWirel s T | ommunica io s Facilities.

Inorder toveri  hat the holder of as ec'al use or zonn  ermit for wireless
telecommunicati ns aciities and an and a essees renters and or licensees of
wireless telecommunications faciities lac and construct such facilities includ'n
towers and antennas in accordance w'th la ° able technical safet fire buildin
and zonin codes laws ordinances and re ulation a dothera licable re uirements
the Town ma ins ecta facetsofsaid rmi hold ’s renter's essee’s or licensee’s
lacement construction modification and maintenance of suc fac’lities inc udin
but not I mited to towe s antennas and buildin s or other st uct res constructed or
loca ed 0 the ermitted site.

An ua NIER Cert'f cation.

The older of the condit cna use 0 zonin com liance ermitshall annuall certi to
he Town that NIER eve s at the si e are with'n the threshold levels ado ted b the FCC

ndemnificatio

An a cationfor wi e ess telecommu  cation facilities thatis ro osed fo Town

ro ert ursuant to this Ord ance shalcontaina rovisio withres ectto
indemnification. Such rovision shallre urethea licant to he extent ermitted b
the law to at al times defend ndem ° rotect save hold harm ess and exem t the
Town and its officers boards em lo ees committee members attorne s ents and
consul an sfroman and all enalt es dama es costs orchar esarisn ou o an and
al claims suits demands causes of act on or award of dama es whether

com ensato or untive orex ensesarsin there from eithera lawori e uit

TOWN OF WARRENTON - COBE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 75




which mi ht arise out of or are caused b the lacement construction erection
modification location roducts erformance use o eration maintenance re air
installation re lacement removal or restoration of said facilit exce tin however
an ortion o suchclaims suits demands causes of action or award of dama es as ma
be attributable to the ne li ent or intentional acts or omissions of the Town or its
servants or a ents. With res ect to the enalties dama es or char es referenced
herein reasonable attorne s’ fees consultants’ fees and ex ert witness fees are
included in those costs that are recoverable b the Town.

Default and or Revocation.

If wireless telecommunications facilities are re aired rebuilt laced moved
re-located modified or maintained in a wa that is inconsistent or not in

com liance with the rovisions of this Ordinance or of the s ecial use or
zonin  ermit then the Town shall noti the holder of the s ecial use or
zonin  ermit in writin of such violation. Notwithstandin an hin to the
contrar in this subsection or an other section of this Ordinance if the
violation causes creates or resents an imminent dan er or threat to the health
or safet oflivesor ro ert the Townma at its sole discretion order the
violation remedied within twent four 24 hours.

b If within the eriod set forthin A above the wireless telecommunications
facilities are not brou ht into com liance with the rovisions of this
Ordinance or ofthe s ecial use or zonin ermit or substantial ste s are not
taken in order to brin the affected wireless telecommunications facilities into
com liance then the Town ma revoke such s ecial use or zonin  ermit for
wireless telecommunications facilities and shall notif the holder of the
conditional use or zonin  ermit within fort ei t 48 hours of such action.

Removal of Wireless Telecommunications Facilities.

Under the following circumstances, the Town may determine that the health, safety,
and welfare interests of the Town warrant and r  uire the removal of wireless

telecommunications facilities.

1  Wireless telecommunications facilities with a ermit have been
abandoned i.e. not used as wireless telecommunications facilities for a
eriod exceedin one hundred andei t

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 76




180 consecu ive da sor a tota of three hundred and s'xt f've 365 da sin
an two 2 ear eriod exce tfor eriodscausedb force ma'oror Acts of
God, in which case, repair or removal shall comme ce w'thin 180 davys,

2 Permitted wi eless telecommunications facilit es fall into such a state
o disre air that it creates a health or safet hazard-

3 Wrreless teleco mu ications faci ities have been located constructed
or modified without first obtainin or1 aman er not authorized b
he re uired s ecial useor zonin ermit oran other necessar
authorization.

S . Waiver.

A a cantor ermitteedesirm waiverf oman as ectorre uirement of this
cha terma re uestsu h romthe Zon'n Admin'strator rovided that the waiver is
contained in the original app cation for either a special use or zoning permit, or in the

case of an existin or r vousl ran ed ondiional use orzonin ermitare uest for
modific ‘on f ts tower and or facil ties.

Such waiverma be em ora or ermanent artial or com lete. However the
burden of rovin the need for he re uested waiverissolel onthea ° antto
rove. No such waivershallbea rovedunlessthea lica tdemonstratesb clear
and conv'ncin evidence that if ranted the waiver will have no s nificant affect o
the hea th safet and welfare of the Town its res dents and other service rovider

Adherence to State and or Federal Rules and Re ula ions.

a To the extent that the holder of a s ecial use or zonin  ermit for w reless
telecommunications facilities has not rece ved relief or is otherwise exem t
froma ro riate State and or Federal a enc rules orre lations then the
holder of such a s ecial use or zon n  ermit shall adhere o and com | with
alla licablerules re lations standards and rovisions of an State or
Federal a enc includin but not lim'ted to the FAA and the FCC.

S ecificall included in this re uirement are an rulesandre  ations
re ardin hei ht li htin ecurit electrica and RF emission sta dar

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 77




b To the extent that a licable rules re lations standards and rovisions of
an State or Federal a enc includin but not limited to the FAA and the
FCC and s ecificall includin an rules and re lationsre ardin hei t
li tin and securit are chan ed and/or are modified durin the duration of a
s ecial use or zonin  ermit for wireless telecommunications facilities then
the holder of such a s ecial use or zonin  ermit shall conform the ermitted
wireless telecommunications facilities to the a  licable chan ed and/or
modified rule re lation standard or rovision within a maximum of twent -
four 24 months of the effective date of the a licable chan ed and/or
modified rule re lation standard or rovision or sooner as ma bere uired
by the issuing entity.

§151.105 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.

The zoning Administrator who shall be appointed by the Town Board of Commissioners is

duly charged with the enforcement of the provisions of this chapter. If the Zoning Administrator

finds that an ofthe rovisions of this cha ter are bein violated the Zonin Administrator shall
notify in writing the person responsible for such violations, indicating the nature of the violation
and orderin the action necessa to correct it. The Zonin Administrator shall also take an
other action authorized b this cha ter to ensure com liance with or to revent violation of its
provisions .No staff member shall make a final decision on an administrative decision required
b this Cha ter if the outcome of that decision would have a direct substantial and readil
identifiable im act on the staff member or if the a licant or other erson has a close familial
business or other associational relationship . If a staff member has a conflict of interest under this
section the decision_shall be assigned to the supervisor of the staff person or such other staff
ersons asma bedesi atedb the develo ment re ulation or other ordinance.

No staff member shall be financiall interested or em lo ed b a business that is financiall

interested in a develo ment sub’ect to re lation under this ordinance unless the staff member is

the owner of the land or the buildin involved. No staff member or other individual or an
em lo ee of a com an contractin  with a local overnment to rovide staff su ort shall
en a e in an work that is inconsistent with his or her duties or with the interest of the local
overnment as determined b the local overnment.

Minor Modifications. The Zonin Administrator is authorized to review and a rove
administrativel a minor modification to an a roved S ecial Use Permit sub’ect to the
followin limitations.

A. General Limitations. The minor modification:

i. Does not involve a chan € in in uses ermitted or the densit of the overall
develo ment ermitted.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 78



li does not increase the im acts enerated b the deve o ment of traffic
stormwater runoff or s'milar im acts be ond what was ro’ected fort e ori ina develo ment
app oval: and

iii. Meets a o her ordinance requirements.

B.Sit Desi n Sited si nminor modificat'ons are ‘'m’ted ad'ustments to the terms or
des nofana roveddevelo ment lanor at includn as e lana ached asconditiontoa
ec’a use ermit. In addit on to the eneral limitations for m n r modifications a site desi n

nor modif'cation mus :

i.Com withunderl in zonin standardsa dothera licable condit ons of the
a roval

ii. Be 'mited to a m'nor chan e such as witho tlim™ ation a minor ad’ustment to
road confi uration or internal circu ation a minor ad’'ustmenttob d'n location ora minor
ad us me ttoutilit al nment,

C. Dimensional Standards. Dimensiona s andard modificat'ons are ad’ustmen s to the
d’'mensional standards of the zonin ordinance Dimensional standards ma onl be modified
u onafindin b the adm nistrator based on evidence from the ermit holder hat the
mod fication 1s needed to address a site chara teristic or techn al desi n considerat on not
known at the ime of initia a roval

B. A eals and Variances. A decision onm or mod fication ma be a ealed to the Board of
Ad’ustment as an administrative determinatio . A a licat’'on for a minor mod fication does not
reclude ana licant from seekin a variance from the Board of Ad ustment

Ord. assed 2-16-85

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 79



§151.106 ZONING PERMIT.

A No buildin or structure or an  art thereof shall be erected extended enlar ed or
structurall altered or moved until a zonin  ermit has been issued b the Zonin Administrator
or the Zonin Administrator’s authorized re resentative. A fee of 25 shall be char ed for the
issuance of each zoning permit.

B Alla lcations for ermits shall be in the form rescribed b the Zonin Administrator
and shall include a lot of site lan drawn to scale which shall clear] show:

1 The actual sha e and dimensions of the lot to be built u on or used and total
acreage in the lot;

2 The location of the ro osed structure or use on the lot

(3) The exact location and size of existing structures and uses;

4 The existin and intended use of each structure or art of structure:

(5) _The number of dwelling units the building 1s designed to accommodate, if
a licable:

(6) The height and number of stories of the structure;

7 The location and desi  of an off-street arkin and/or loadin -

8 The location and dimensions of drivewa s. Drivewa a roval rocedures as
re uired b the State De artment of Trans ortation shall be initiated-

9 Dateof lan re aration-
10 Location and descri tions of landsca in  bufferin andsi s

11  Such other information as ma be necessar for determinin  whether the
rovisions of this cha ter are bein met.

C In addition to the information re uired in 151.106 B an use which involves the
ou in of more than one rinci al buildin or use on the same lot shall include the followin
information:

1 A vicinit ma showin the relationshi of the ro osed develo ment to the
surrounding area;

2 North arrow and declination

3 Detailed la outs for all utilities ri ht-of-wa s and roads and other
improvements;

4 Railroads bnd es culverts storm drains wooded areas marshes swam s rock

outcrops, ponds or lakes, streams or stream beds, and any other similar features
affecting the site;

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 80




5 Aceo ofan ro oseddeedr ric 10ns or similar covenants

6 TFor roects over a ace in sze or i otherwise re uired b the Zo
Administrator ato ¢ a hicma s owin vertica contours ever two feet:

The names addresses and tele hone numb rs of owners mort a ees re 1 tered
surve ors land lanners architecs landsca e architects and ro essiona
en ineers res onsible for the develo men .

D The Zonin Administrator ma inw tin exem tthea licant from meeti an la
re uirement which is clearl ina licabletot e ro osed use.

E Mobile home arks and sho in centers shal com | with the re urements of
151.091 C in lieu of the re uiremen s 'n th's section.

F As rovidedinG.S. 160D-108 d 1 an buwldin ermit issued shall become invalid
and ex ire unless the work authorized b it shall ha bee <¢o menced with n six mon hs of its
date of issue or if the work a thorized b itissus nded o abandoned fora eriodi excess of
one ear.

{G) Zoning Compliance Permi s

1. Pursuant to G.S. 160D-108 d 2 =zonin com liance ermitsshalex 1 e within
one ea from date of 1ssua ce unles work has substantiall com enced.

2.  Forthese ur oses ‘substant’all commenced includes but is not limited to
applicat'on__ for and t'mely pursuit of a building permit, grading permit, or other
permit necessary to commence installation of infrastructure or establishment o _the
intended use

3. Even fwork has subst ntiall commenced adevelo menta roval still ex ires if
deve o ment work is ‘n entionall and vo untaril discon inued for a eriod of not
less th n 24 cons cut ve months as calculated and tolled ursuant to G.S. 160D
108

H A record of al zonin  ermts shall be ke t on file and o en to the ublic s b'ec to
state law.

Ord. assed 12-16-85

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 81




151.107 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY/COMPLIANCE.

No land shall be used or com lied and no buildin or structure erected or altered shall be
used or chan ed in use until a certificate of occu anc com liance has been issued b the Zonin
Administrator statin that the buildin and/or the ro osed use com lies with the rovisions of
this cha ter. A certificate of the same shall be re uired for the u ose of chan in an existin
use' as well as for maintainin reviewin chan in or extendin an nonconformin use. The
aforementioned certificate shall be a lied for coincidentall with the a lication for a zonin

ermit and shall be issued within ten workin da s after the erection or alterations of such
buildin or art shall have been com leted in conformit with the rovisions of this ordinance. A
record of all such certificates shall be ke t on file and 0 en to the ublic sub’ect to state law.

Ord. assed 12-16 85

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 82




§151.108 CONFORMANCE WITH PLANS

Permits or certificates issued on he basis of lans and a lications shall authorize onl he
use arran ement and construction set forth in such a roved lans and a lications and no
o her use arran ement or co struction.

Ord. assed 2-16 85

§151.109 RIGHT OF APPEAL.

[f the zonin ermit and or occu anc com liance certifica es are den ed thea licant ma
a eca the action of the Zonin Ad ninistrator to the Board of Ad ustment

Dut'es of Zonin Admi ‘strator Zonin Board Courts and Town Boa d of Comm’ssioners as to
Matters of Appeal

t sthe nten ionofthisord a ce hata wuestionsarsn inconnection with the enforcement of

this o dinance shall be presented frst o the Zoning Administ ator and hat such guestions shall be
resented to the Zonin Board on on a ea from the Zonin Adm nistrator and that from the
decision of the Zonin Board ecourse shall be had to courts as rovided b law It is further the
intention of this ordinance that the duties of the Town Board i connec ion with the ordinance shall

not include th hearin and assn u on dis uted uestions that ma ar'se in connection with the
enforcement thereof but that the ocedure for determinin  such uest'ons shall be as here'n set in
the ordinance and that the du ies of the Town Board con ect'on wi h this ordinance shall be onl
the duty of considering.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.1 0 BOA D OF DJUSTMENT.

A Pur uant to G.S. 160D-301 there shall be and is hereb created a Board of
Ad us men heremafler call d the Board consistin of five members includin three residents
of the town of and wo members of the one-mile extraterritorial 'unsdiction. All members of
the Board shall have voting power on all matters of business. The town residence members of
the Board sh Il bea ointe b the Town Board of Commussioners. Residents of the one-mile
extraterritorial ‘urisdiction shall be a ointed b the Warren Count Board of Commissioners
in accordance with G.S. 1 0D-307 a . The members of the Board of Ad ustment shall have
init al terms of office as follows: one member a ointed for a term of one ear' two members
a ointed for terms of two ears and two members a ointed for terms of three ears. An
alternate member a ointed from within the co orate limits of the town ma serve on the

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 83




Board onl in the absence of a re lar member a ointed from within the town’s co orate
limits. The alternate member from the extraterritorial "urisdiction of the town ma serve on the
Board onl in the absence of the re lar member from that area. Subse uent terms shall be for
three ears. If the Board of Count Commissioners fail to a oint the extraterritorial members
within 90 da s after receivin a resolution from the Town Board of Commissioners re uestin
that there a ointments be made the Town Board of Commissioners ma make them. All
members a ointed to the boards under this section shall before enterin their duties  uali

b takin and oath of office asre uiredb G.S. 160D-309.

B The Board of Ad ustment shall elect a chairman and vice-chairman from its re ular
members who shall serve for one ear or until re-elected or until their successors are elected.
The Board shall ado t rules and b laws 1n accordance with the rovisions of this cha ter and of

.G.S. h. 160D-301. Meetin s of the Board shall be held at the call of the chairman and at
such other times as the Board ma determine. The chairman or in his absence the vice-
chairman ma administer oaths and com el the attendance of witnesses b sub oena. All
meetin s of the Board of Ad ustment is necessar to reverse an order re uirement decision
or determination of an administrative official char ed with the enforcement of this cha ter or
to decide in favor of the a licant an matter u on which it is re uired to ass under this
cha ter orto ant a variance from the rovisions of this cha ter. Hearin s b the Board of
Ad'ustment shall be conducted in accordance with 151.112.

C All decisions shall be made art of the ta e recorded or transcribed record of the ublic
hearing and the written minutes. The decision shall include: A) Information Presented The
information resented before the decision-makin bod . B Documenta Evidence The
documentar evidence submitted into the record: and C Statement of A roval A roval with
Conditions or Disa roval a clear statement of a roval a roval with conditions or
disa roval whicheverisa ro riate.

D The Board of Ad'ustment shall have the followin owers and duties:

(1) Appeals G.S. § 160D 405

A Pu ose: An ersona rievedb an decision or inte retation made b the
Zonin  Administrator exce t construction lans final lats and minor
subdivisions for subdivision or other officials administerin this Ordinance ma
appeal such decision to the Board of Adjustment, which shall review the decision
or inte retation ursuant to the re uirements of this Section.

{B) Authorization: On the action appealed from, the Board of Adjustment shall
have the same authorit as the reviewin bod to make the correct order

requirement, decision or determination.

C) Procedures

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tahte of Contents Index Page 84



| Initiation of a eals. Notices of A eal shall be filed within the time
rescribed in the Rules of Procedure of the Town Board of Ad ustment.

2 Contents of a eal. The Notice of A eal shall include a statement of the
error or im ro er decision or inte retation made b the Zonin Administrator or
other officer the date of that decision and all su ort matenals related to the
decision. The specific form of the Notice of Appeal shall be established by the
Zonin Administrator.

3 Forwardin record to the a ellate bod . U on receivin the Notic of
A eal the Zonin Administrator shall forward the Notice of A eal and the
record of the decision on which the a eal is based to the Board of Ad ustment.

4 Notice rocedures. Notice of the time and lace of the hearin on the

a ealshall be mailed tothe A ellantb the Zonin Administrator at least 14 da s

rior to the date of the hearin . Notice of the h arin shall also be ublished b the
Zonin Administrator at least 14 calendar da s rior. At the hearin onthea eal the
A ellantorthe A ellant'sa entshall stat the roundsforthea ealand include an
materials or evidence to su ort thea eal. The Zonin Administrator or a desi nated
re resentative shall be rovided the o ortunit tores ond aswellasan other

ersons the Board of Ad'ustment deems necessa . After the conclusion of the hearin
the Board of Ad'ustment shall either affirm affirm with modifications or reverse the
contested decision or inter retation based on the Standards. The concurrin  vote of
four-fifths of the members o the Board of Ad'ustment sha be necessa to reverse an
order re uirement decis'on or determi ationona eal.

(D) Action by the Town Board

1 Notice and Public Hearnin shal be made 'n accordance with G.S. 160D Article
6.

No amendment shall be ado ted b the Town Board until after ublic notice and
hearing.

Notice o Public Hear'n sha be iven once a week fortwo 2 consecutive calendar
weeks in a newspaper of general ¢ rcula ion in Warrenton, North Carolina. Said
notice shall be ublished thef sttme otlessthanten 0 da snormore han
twent five 25 da s rior to the date of the ublic hearin

Wh neverthe eisa ro osedzo in ma am ndment the owner of that arce of land as
shownont ecount taxlistin and he owne sofal arcelsof land abuttin hat arcel of land
asshownont ecount taxhstin andalso ro e tiesse arated from the sub’ect ro ert b
street ra road or other trans orta ion corndo  hall be maile a notice of ubl'chearn on

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 85




the proposed amendment by first class mail at the last addresses listed for such owners on the
county tax abstracts. This notice must be deposited in the mail at least 10 but not more than 25
days prior to the date of the public hearing. The person or persons mailing such notices shall
certify to the Town Beard that fact. and such certificate shall be deemed conclusive in the
absence of fraud.

The first class mail notice reguired under this section shall not be required if the zoning map
amendment directly affects more than 50 properties, owned by a total of at least 50 different property
owners, and the city elects to use the expanded published notice provided for in this subsection. In this
instance, the Town may elect to either make the mailed notice provided for above, or may as an
alternative elect to publish notice of the hearing once a week for two successive calendar weeks in a
newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Warrenton, as required by G.5. § 160D-602, but
provided that each advertisement shall not be less than one-half of a newspaper page in size. The
advertisement must show the boundaries of the area affected by the proposed zoning map
amendment and explain the nature of the proposed change. The advertisement shall only be effective
for property owners who reside in the area of general circulation of the newspaper which publishes
the notice. Property owners who reside outside of the newspaper circulation area, according to the
address listed on the most recent property tax listing for the affected property, shall be notified
according to the first class mail notice provisions above.

When a zoning map amendment is proposed, the Town shall also prominently post a notice of the
public hearing on the site proposed for rezoning or on an adjacent public street or highway right-of-
way. When multiple parcels are included within a proposed zoning map amendment, a posting on
each individual parcel is not required, but the Town shall post sufficient notices to provide reasonable
notice to interested persons.

E) Stay: An appeal shall stay all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed. unless the
Town Attorney certifies that by reason of facts stated in the appeal, a stay would cause imminent
peril to life or property.

F) Standards: A deciston/interpretation of the Zoning Administrator or other official under this
Ordinance shall not be reversed or modified unless there is demonstrated evidence that the
interpretation/decision is inconsistent with the intent and standards of this Ordinance.

() Hearing on Record: All appeals will be held solely on the record.

H) Conflicts on Quasi-Judicial Matters( G.S. §160D-109)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents index Page 86




A member of the Plannin and Zonin Board or an other bod exercisin the functions of a
Plannin and Zonin Board shall not artici ate in or vote on an  uasi-'udicial matter in a
manner that would violate affected ersons’ constitutional ri hts to an im artial decision maker.
Im ermissible co flicts include but are not limited to a member havin a fixed o inion rior to
a hearin the matter that is not susce tible to chan e undisclosed ex arte communications a
close familial business or other associational relationshi with an affected erson or a financial
interest in the outcome of the matter. If an ob’ection is raised to a member’s artici ation and
tha member does not recuse him or herself the remainin members shall b ma’orit vote rule
on the objection.

2 Variances. To authorize u on a eal in s ecific cases such variance from the terms of this
cha ter will not be contrar to the ublic interest where owin to s ecial conditions a literal
enforcement of the rovisions of this cha ter will in an individual case result in ractical
difficult or unnecessa hardshi so that the s irit of this cha ter shall be observed ublic
safet and welfare secured and substantial ‘ustice done. The existence of a nonconformin use
of nei borin land buildin or structure in the same district or of ermitted or nonconformn
uses in other districts shall not constitute a reason for the re uested variance. Such variance ma
be anted in such individual cases of unnecessa hardshi u on a findin that all standards set
out in N.C.G.S 160D-705 d have been met and that the followin conditions exist:

a There are exce ional co ditions ertainin t he articuar 1ece o ro ert in uestion
because of its sha e size orto o a h thatarenota licable to other lands or structures in the
same district or there 1s a eculiar charactenist' ¢ of an estab ishment which makes the arkin
and or loading require ents of this chapter unrealist c;

b Grantin the variance re uested will not confe u onthea licantan s ecial rivile es that
are denied to other residents of the district 1n which the o ert is located:

¢ A literal inte re ation of the rovisions of thus cha ter would de rive the a licant or 1i hts
commonl en'o edb other residents of the di tric in wh'ch the ro ert s located:

d The re uested variance w Il be in harmon with the u ose a d inten of this cha ter and
will not be in"urious to the nei  borhood or to the eneral welfare:

e hes ecial circumstances re no theres It of the ac ons ofthea licant’

T e variance e uested 1s the min'mum vanance that will make ossible thele al s of't
and, bu lding, or struct re:

The varance 1s not a re ues to ermit a use which is not a ermitted ors ecia u 1 th
district invoived.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 87



In  antin an variance the Board of Ad'ustment ma rescribe a ro riate conditions and
safe ards to ensure that substantial "ustice has been done and that the ublic safet and welfare
has been assured. Such conditions ma be im osed b the Board re ardin the location
character and other features of the ro osed buildin structure or use as ma be deemed b the
Board to rotect ro ert values and eneral welfare of the nei borhood. Nonconformance with
such conditions and safe ards when art of the terms under which the variance is anted shall
be deemed a violation of this cha ter. A variance ma be anted when necessar and
a ro riate to make a reasonable accommodation under the federal Fair Housin Act for a
person with a disability.

3 Ma Inter retation. To inte ret the official zonin ma in accordance with 151.044 of this
chapter.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 88




§151.111 SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND USES.

he rovisions of this cha ter ermit some ses to be establishedb i ti thea ro riate
distr ¢ while ot er uses are isted which re vire a ermit from the Board of Ad ustment or Town
Board of Commiss oners. hos 1 which re uire a emmit from the Board of Ad’'ustm t are

termed o s ecial uses b this cha er whole those wh ch involve broader olic
co siderations and t erefore re uire a ermit from the Town Board o Commissioners are termed
s ecial uses. Both t es if uses in some s ec’al ' uses bu the ma aso have
charac eristics which could have detrimental ef ects 0 ad ace t ro erties or even the entire
areao hetown i not ro erl desi edandc ntr led. S ecia o uses shall be in
accordance wi h the re uirementsin 151 11 as well asa othera icablere uirements oft s
chapter.

Ord. assed 2 16 85

§151.112 APPLICATION AND REVIEW PROCEDURES.

This a | cant shall submit the a ro riate a eal for administrative review or for a variance
orana lc onforas ecial use ermit accom anied b a site lan re ared in accordance
with 151. 06 in the number of co ies established b and alon with an other information
re uired b the Zonin Administrator for ro er review of the a lication. The Board of
Ad'ustment or the Board of Commissioners shall 1ve due notice of the hearin to the arties
involved. In the case of a s ecial use ermit a lication the lannin board shall be iven 60
da s to review the a lication before the hearin . The hearin shall not be held until a Plannin
Board recommendation has been received or 60 da s has ela sed. The Plannin Board shall ive
due notice to the a licant of an meetin s at which the a lication will be considered. The
hearin shall be conducted in accordance with the eneral law and court decisions of this state.
More s ecificall an interested art must be iven the o ortunit to resent evidence or
testimon to cross-examine witnesses to ins ect documents and to offer evidence or testimon
which is com etent relevant and material. Findin s as to the existence or nonexistence of
crucial facts shall be based on sworn evidence or testimon unless the art or arties before the
Board sti ulate the facts or waive this re uirement. A sim le ma'orit 1s necessar for the Board
of Ad ustment or the Board of Commissioners to issue a s ecial use ermut. For the antin ofa
variance no fewer than 4 5ths 4 5 of the board must be resent and vote in favor of the said
action. The Clerk of the Board shall kee munutes of the roceedin s showin the vote of each
member u on ever uestion or if absent or failin to vote indicatin that fact. A fee of $25
shall be aid to the town for each a lication for an administrative review for a variance or
s ecial advertisin and other administrative ex enses involved. No a  lication will be rocessed
until the above fee has been aid.

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 89




§151.113 CONDITIONS WHICH MUST BE MET BY SPECIAL AND
CONDITHONAL USES.

A In order for an s ecial er-econditional use to be anted the a licant at the hearin
shall resent sufficient evidence to enable the Board to find that the followin conditions exist
where a licable:

1 All a licable s ecific conditions ertainin to the ro osed use have been or
will be satisfied;

{2) Access roads or entrance and exit drives are or will be sufficient in size and
ro erl located to ensure automotive and edestrian safet and convenience
traffic flow, and control and access in case of fire or other emergency:

(3) Off-street parking, loading, refuse, and other service areas are located so as to be
safe convenient allow for access in case of emer enc and to minimize
economic, glare, odor, and other impacts on adjoining properties and properties in

the general neighborhood;

4 Utilities schools fire olice and other necessar ublic and rivate facilities and
services will be adeguate to handle the proposed use;

5 The location and arran ement of the use on the site screenin  bufferin
landsca in and edestrian wa s harmonize with ad'oinin ro erties and the
eneral area and minimize adverse im acts’

6 Thet e size and intensit ofthe ro osed use includin such considerations as
the hours of o eration and number of eco le who are likel to utilize or be
attracted to the use will not have si mficant adverse im acts on ad'oinin

ro erties or the nei hborhood.

7 The use or develo ment is located desi ed and ro osed to be o erated so as to
maintain or enhance the wvalue of conti ous 10 ert or that the use or
development is a public necessity: and

{8) The use will not be a detriment or deterrent to economic development;

9 The use will be in harmon with the existin develo ment and uses within the
area in which it is to be located.

10 The use or develo ment conforms to the eneral lans for the h sical
develo ment of the Town and is consistent with an Town Com rehensive Plan.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - FTable of Contents tndex Page 90




B Ifthea ro riateboarda rovesas ecial o use itma as artof heterms
of such a roval im ose an additional easonable cond tions and safe ards as ma be
necessar to insure that the criteria for the rantin of such a ermit will be com lied w th and to
educe or minimize an  otentta  in'urious effect of the use on ad'onin ro ertie th
character of the nei borhood or the health safet morals or eneral welfae of th
communit . Where a ro riate such co ditions a include re uirements that street and utilit
ri ht of-wa be dedicated to the ublic and that rovision be made of recreat onal ace and
acilities.

C In addition to the eneral conditions in  51.113 A s ecial uses s al meet s ecific
conditions for thet e of use as indicated 1in his sec ion.

(1) Use: Multi-family dwel ings and complexes as a special use in R-8., R-20 and
O&l.

a Re uirements: Maximum densit shall be as ind'cated in  51.045 B

b  Where more than one buildin is to be located at the site buldin
se aration shall be determined as follows: The minimum horizonta distanc
between the vertical ro’ections of an  oints on two ad acent buildin s shall b
determined accordin o the o lowin table. The vertical ro'ections for each
buildin shall be d aw from that oint on each buildin which is honzontall
closest to the other buildin .

20 or less 16
25
30

40

¢ Distance related to windows: The minimum distance between the centers of
acin windows of diffe ¢ t dwellin units shall be 20 feet.

d A ard of at least 50 feet shall be rovided around the en ire erimeter of
the site with the exce t'on of dnvewa s. Parkin s aces a d accessor
buildin s shall not be a owed nthere wired ard.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 91



CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codes

e Access for emer enc vehicles to all arts of the com lex and to each
dwelling unit shall be provided.

Accesso buildin s and uses for multi-famil dwellin s shall not be laced
in the fifty foot vard around the perimeter of the site.

The Board ma a rove the inclusion of leasin offices and of coin-
operated laundry facilities, swimming pool snack bars. and similar service uses
for residents of the multi-family dwelling provided that they are intended to
serve residents of the dwelling or complex only, and will not attract outside
traffic to the site.

2 Use: Planned Unit Develo ments as a s ecial use in R-20 R-12 and R-8.

a A lanned unit develo ment is a ro'ect which is at least two oss acres in
size to be located on land under unified control lanned as a whole and
develo ed in a sin le develo ment o eration or in a definitel ro rammed
series of units or sta es of develo ment accordin to com rehensive and
detailed lans witha ro am for the rovision o eration and maintenance of
an areas im rovements and facilities rovided for the common use of the
occu ants or users of the develo ment.

b A lanned unit develo ment ma contain an of the ermitted s ecial er
conditional uses listed for the R-20, R-12, or R-8 districts, subject to approval of
the lans b the Board of Commissioners. Board of Ad'ustment a roval of
those listed as eenditienal—s ecial uses 15 not needed in a lanned unit
develo ment. Dimensional and densit re uirements for multi-famil dwellin s
in a planned unit development shall be as indicted for multi-family dwellings in
§151.045(B) and in this section. Dimensional requirements for nonresidential
uses in a planned unit development shall be those listed for other principal use
in 151.045 B for the district in which the lanned unit develo ment is located.
Sho in centers are also ermitted in a lanned unit develo ment. Uses
allowed in such sho in centers are: ocer stores dru stores laund and
d cleanin establishments offices ift sho s card sho s camera and
hoto a h sho s barber and beaut sho s and restaurants.

¢ In addition to the uses allowed in R-20 R-12 and R-8 districts and
sho in centers the followin uses are allowed in lanned unit develo ments:

(1) Clustered detached single-family dwellings. These are dwellings in
which the lot size for each individual dwelling may be reduced, but may
not be less than 6 000 s uare feet rovided that the difference between the
re uired dimensions for the district as indicated in 151.045 B and the

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 92




reduced dimensions 1s dedicated to a homeowner’s association as
COmMmon o ens ace.

ii Zero lot line dwellin s. These are detached sin le-famil dwellin s on
lots without a s'de ard re uiremen on one side of the lot. The lot for a
zero lo line dwellin ma be reduced but ma not be less than 6 000
s uare ecet ovided that the difference between the re uired dimensions
for the istric as indicated in 15 .045 B and the reduced dimensions is
dedica dto a homeowner’s associat'on as common o en s ace.

d Common areas and common o en s ace shall be deeded to an owners
a sociation and the develo er or owner shall file with the Zonin Administrator
and record in the Count Re ister of Deeds office a declaration of covenants
and restrictions as we | asre lations as b laws that will overnthe o en s ace.
Provisions shall include but not be limited to the followin :

i Th association shall be established before the homes buildin s or
uses are sold-

ii  Membershi shall be mandator for the bu er and all successive
bu ers unless another arran ement is a roved b the Board of
Commissioners which ade uatel rotects the interests of the town and the
owners’

iti The as ociation shall be res onsibl for the liabilit insurance 1
taxes and maintenance of rec eation and other facilities:

iv  An sums levied b the association that remain un aid shall become
a lien on the individual owners’ ro ert which shall be subordinate onl
to tax and mort a ee liens unless anoth arran ement is roved b the
Town Board which ade uatel rotects the interests of t e town and the
owners’

v An owner of each dwellin unitoreachh eowner or other buildi
owner shall have votin 1 hts in the association

vi Uses of common ro ert shal bea o riatel lim ted

vii The followin information shall also be rovided:
a The name of the association
b The man er in which directors of the association are to be
selected
¢ The ostof ce address of the initia re istered office

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 93



d The name of the cit and count in which the re istered office is
located' and
e The number of directors constitutin the initial board of directors.

3 Use: Public buildin s uses utilities as a s ecial use in R-20 R-12 R-8 O&I.

a Re uirements: The Board shall review each a lication carefull and shall
den the ermit if the benefit to the ublic will not outwei an adverse effects
the use mi ht have.

4 Use: Radio and TV stations and transmission towers as a s ecial use in R-20.

a Re uirements: The minimum distance from the center of the transmission
tower to the nearest ro ert line shall be two times the hei t of the tower or
the hei ht of the tower lus 200 feet whichever is eater. Off-street arkin
shall be rovided at the rate of one s ace for each em lo ee.

5 Use: Communit centers as a conditional use in R-12 R-8 rivate clubs as a
conditionalusein R 20 R 12 R 8.

a Re uirements: Noise from a ublic address s stem shall not be heard
be ond the nei hborin residential uses.

(b) The use will not be located in an area where traffic congestion will be a
roblem for nei borin residential uses.

6 Use: Fraternal or anizations not o en to the ublic as a conditional use in R-20
R-12. R-8.

a Re uirements: The use shall be located where there shall be no disturbance
to residences and shall be adequately designed for its size and purpose.

b Noise from the ublic address s stem shall not be heard be ond the
property where the use is located.

(¢) The use shall not be located in an area where traffic congestion will be a
problem for neighboring residential uses.

(7)_Use: Temporary uses such as circuses, camivals, fairs, as a special use in R-20,
R-12_ R-8.

{a) Reguirements: This site shall be located at least 200 feet from the nearest

occu ied residential structure and shall be ade uatel desi ed for its size and
u ose. The use shall meet an a licable Count Health De artment

requirements.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 94




8 Use: Othertem ora uses.

a Re uirements: The Board shall consider the effects of the use on ad’ace t
ro erties and shall set a time limit on the tem orar use.

9 Use: Commercial amusements as a conditional use in C 2.

a Re uirements: No outdoor activities includin  arkin shall be locate
within 2 000 feet of and residentiall zoned land. No li hts ma s ine wher
the will roduce are which will not be directl cast on a residential structu
Noise from commercial amusements shall not be a nuisance to an residentiall
zoned land. The Board will a close attention to bufferin .

b For indoor activit the Board will take in o consideration the ro osed siz
of the 0 eration and number of atrons and their effect on nei hborin areas

¢ Hours of o eration will be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 .m.

10 Use: Retail or wholesale businesses service establishments or ublicusesoh r
than those s ecificall isted with outdoor sales service stora e areas or whi h
would emit smoke odor dust fumes or noise from the buildin in wh'ch the a
located or involve o 1ble ire hazard.

a Re uiremens: The Board will carefull cons'der t e eff cts of h
individual o eration on net hborin  ro ert and the town and shall den t
ermit 1f an adverse effect would be created.

11 Use: An manufacturin  rocessin or warehousin or trans ortation o ubli
use or utilit which involves outdoo stora e services o erations emits or w |
emit smoke odor dust fumes lare noise or vibration from the buildin 1
which it is located or involves stora e of combustible materials o is amon th
uses listed as exce tions o ermitted uses

a  Re uvirements: The Board will carefull consider the effecs of th
individual o eration on nel hborin  ro ert and the town and shal den th
ermit if an adverse effect would be created.

b The Board shall re uire sufficient bufferin to screen the outdoor use or
ortion of the use from view of streets and nei  borin  ro ert

¢ The outdoor use or ortion of the use shall be maintained 'n a sanitar
condition at all times so as not to harbor mos uitoes vermin or otherwise be
menace to ublic health and safet .

d Where a use could invo ve otential fire or other health hazards the Fir
Chief and where a lLcable the Count Health De artment shall have a

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE GF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 95




o ortunit to review the a lication. The a licant shall rovide all needed
information to enable the a ro riate officials to determine the safet of the
o erations and an stora e measures.

se: Townhouses as as ecial usein R 8
a Re uirements:

i Minimum lot area width de th and lot covera e re uvirements shall
be as indicated in 151.045 B of this cha ter

ii The ard re uirements around the erimeter of townhouse ro'ects
with more than two attached townhouses shall be increased to 50 feet

iii The minimum number of townhouses attached to each other shall be
two and the maximum shall be ei ht

iv  An common areas and common o en s ace shall be deeded to a
homeowners’ association which meets the re uirements of 151.113 C.
For the use townhousesasas ecialusein 151.113 C 13 b 5.e

v Recreationand o ens ace:

ver erson or co oration who establishes a townhouse ro'ect for

residential u oses shall be re uired to dedicate a ortion of such land for the

u oses of ark recreation and o en s ace sites to serve the residents of the
townhouse ro’ect’

¢ The minimum amount of land that shall be dedicated for recreation arks
or o en s ace in all townhouse ro'ects shall be one-half acre for each
townhouse or 5% of the oss acrea e whichever is eatest'

d Criteria for evaluatin suitabilit of ro osed recreation arks and o en
s ace areas shall include but not be limited to the followin as determined b
the Board of Commissioners in ¢on ultation with the Plannin  Board:

i The dedicated land shall be a sin le arcel exce t where it is
determined that two or more arcels would be in the ublic interest. The
Board of Commissioners ma re uire that arcels be connected and ma
re uire the dedication of a connectin  ath of u to 60 feet and in no case
less than 30 feet in width in addition to the land re uired in

151 113 C 13 b 5.b.ofthisu e

i1 The dedicated land shall be located so as to serve the creation needs of
the townhouse project.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 96




ii Public access to t e dedica ed land shall be rovided eiher b an
abuttin street or ublic easement. Such easement ma bere iedtob
u to 60 feet in width and shall in no case be less than 30 feet in width

iv  The ded cated land shall be usable for active recreation la areas
ball fields tennis courts or sim lar recreat'on uses . Lakes ma not be
included in com utin amount of land to be dedicated unless acce table to
the Board of Commissioners If he Board o Comm ssioners determines
hat active recrea on needs are bein met b other dedicated arcels or

existing recreation faci ‘ties, then land that is suitable for open space may
be dedicated.

13 The Board of Commissione s ma in cases of unusual or exce tional nature
allow ad'ustments in the dedication re uirements established in orre ured b this
cha ter Such ad’ustments shal be reviewed b the Plannin Board before ac ion
by the Board of Commissioners;

14 The land re uired b this section ma be dedicated to the town or ma be
deeded to a homeowners’ association the develo er or owner shall file with th
Zonin  Admimstrator and record with he final townhouse ro'ect lat a
declaration of covenants and re tric ions as well as re ulations and b laws that
will overn the o en s ace. Pr v sions hall in lude bu not be limited to the

following;

a The association shall be established before the homes were sold:

b Membershi shall be mandator for each home bu er and all successive
bu ers unless another arran ementisa roved b the Board of Commissioners
which ade uatel rotects the interest of the town and the owners*

(c) The association shall be re ponsible for the liabil ty insurance, local taxes,
and maintenance of the recreation and other facilities

d An sums levied b the associa ion hat emain un aid shall become a lien
on the individual homeowne s> ro ert which shall be subordinate onl to tax
and mort a ee liens unles another arran ement is a roved b the Board of
Commissioners which ade uatel rotects the interests of the town and the
OWners;

¢ Ifalloran ortionofthe ro ert heldb the associatio 1sbemn dis o ed
of or if the association 1s dissolved ade uate o en s ace shall be deede to the
town to satisf the re uirements for ublic recreation s aceu erth se tion of
the cha ter

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 97



{f) An owner of each dwelling unit or each homeowner shall have voting rights

in the association;

Uses of common ro ert shallbea ro riatel limited-

(h) The following information shall also be provided:

(i} _The name of the association; B. The manner in which directors of the

association are to be selected;
(i1) The post office address of the initial registered office;
iti The name of the cit and count in which the re istered office is
located;
iv  The number of directors constitutin the initial board of directors.
Nothin herein shall be construed to limit the amount of rivatel
controlled open space which may be included in this agreement, over and
above the recreation and ark site obli ation.

15 Use: Commercial amusement buildin s as a s ecial use in C-1 C-2 electronic

and pinball machines as a special use in C-1, C-2.

a Re uirements: The Board will take into consideration the ro osed size and
number of atrons and their effect on nei  borin  uses. Hours of o eration will
be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

16 Use: Da nurseries as a conditional use in R-20 R-12 R-8.

a Re uirements: Before a da care center ma be occu ied licensin is
re uired b the North Carolina Da Care Licensin Board as rovided in
N.C.G.S. 110-85efse .

17 Use: Amusement arksasas ecial usein C-2 1.

a Re uirements: No activities includin  arkin shall be located within 2 000
feet of an residentiall zoned land. No li hts from the ark ma shine where
the will roduce lare which will not directl cast on a residential structure.
Noise from the ark shall not be a nuisance to an residentiall zoned land. The
Board will a close attention to bufferin .

18 Use: Cam ound for outhoror anized ou s as a special use in R-20.

a Re uirements: The site shall be located where there shall be no disturbance
to residences and shall be ade uatel desi ed for this size and u ose. The
use shall meetan a licable Count Health De artment re uirements.

19 Use: Outdoor stora ¢ ards asas ecial usein L.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 98




a Re uirements: The board shall re u're sufficient bufferin to com letel
screen the use from view of streets and nei hbori ro ert .

b The use shall be maintained n a san tar coendition at al times so as not to
harbor mos uitoes vermin o o herwise e a menace o ublic health and

safety.

20 Use: Cam ound as a conditional use in R-20.

a Re uirements: The site shall be located where there shall be no disturbance
to residences and shall be ade uatel desi ed forits sizeand u ose. The use
shall meetan a licable Count Health De artment re uirements.

21  Use: Stora e of inflammable li uids and other hazardous substances as a
conditional use in .

a Re uirements: The Fire Chief and where a licab e the Count Health
De artment shall have an 0 ortunit to review the a lication. The a licant
shall rovide all needed information to enable the a ro riate officials to
determine the safet of the stora e measures.

22 Use: Mobile homes and individual lots as s ecial use 'n R-20.

a Re uirements: All re uirements for the location of a sin le-famil dwellin
on an individual lot shall be met. An mobile home constructed before Jul 1
1970 must be a roved b Underwriters Laboratories and an mobile home
constructed after that time must meet all a licable state and federal standards.
All mobile homes shall be tied down 1n accordance with the state re ulations for
mobile homes and modular housin . All Count Health De artment
re uirements shall be met.

23 Use: Short Term Rental as a s ecial use in R-20 R-12 R-8..
a Re uirements:

1. The use shall be mana ed and carried on b a resident of the

ro ert who shall submit to and maintain with the Zonin Administrator a

contact tele hone number b which said resident ma be reached at an time
durin a short term rental sta .

ii. The use shall not allow dis la s of oods roducts services or
other advertisin shall be visible from outside of the dwellin .

iii. The use shall not allow activities other than lod in shall be
provided.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 99



iv. The use shall not re uire additional off-street arkin .

v, The use shall not allow si a e visible from the exterior of the
residence,

vi. The use shall only allow appropriate exterior residential in nature
lighting.

Vi, The use shall re uire the owner or o eratorto a an a licable
taxes includin occu anc and sales taxes to the a ro riate overnmental

entity.

vili. The dwellin unit utilized for the short term rental shall com |
with all current and a licable residential buildin codes.

iX. The overni t lod in shall not exceed 30 consecutive da s for
an one erson. Followin the ex iration of the 30 da  eriod no short-term
lod er shall occu  the same dwellin without a a of at least 7 consecutive
calendar da s.

X. Short-term lod ers ma not utilize the remises for holdin s ecial
events or atherin s.

Xi. The owner of such remises shall maintain a list of all short-term
lod ers who sta in his dwellin . Said list shall contain the names of lod ers
for the last three vear period.

Xii. Each violation of these and other s ecial use condition shall is
sub ect to Penalties under Section 151.999,

xiii. O eration of a short term rental without the re uired s ecial use
ermit 1s sub ect to Penalties under Section 151.999.

{Ord. passed 12-16-85)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tabile of Contents Index Page 100




§151.114 AMENDMENTS.

A Thiszonin code includin the official zonin ma ma be amended onl b the Board
of Commissioners of the town accordin to the rocedures of this section. Pro osed
amendments ma be initiated b the Board of Commissioners Plannin Board or Board of
Adjustment. Proposed amendments to the text of the zoning ordinance map also be initiated by
an resident or ro ert owner within the ‘urisdiction covered b this cha ter and an ro ert
owner within the "urisdiction covered b this cha ter ma initiate a re uest for a chan e in the

zoning classification of his property.

B Exce t for amendments imtiated b the Town Board Plannin Board or Board of
Ad'ustment no ro osed amendment shall be considered b the Town Board nor a ublic
hearin held until an a lication containin the followin information is submitted b the
a licant: a statement of the resent zonin re lations or district boundar the name and
s1 ature of the a licant and if an amendment of the zonin ma is ro osed the tax arcel
number of the lot ro osed to be rezoned the names and addresses of the owners of the lot in

uestion and the use of each ad'acent ro ert . When the a licant ro osin the amendment is

not the ro ert owner the burden of notif in the ro ert owner as shown on the count tax
listin shall be re uired b the third art re uestin to certif that the ro ert owner has
received actual notice of the a lication and the scheduled ublic hearin . Actual notice ma be
rovided b means of ersonall delivered or sent re istered certified or deliver -recei t mail.
The a licant shall rovide an additional information related to the ro osed amendment
re uested in writin b the Plannin Board or Board of Commissioners. The Zonin
Administrator shall transmit the or1 inal a lication to the Town Board and a co to the
Plannin Board. The ort inal a ication shall be f'led in the office of he Zonin Administrato
after consideration b the Tow Board.

C No amendment shall be ado ted b the Board of Commissioners until the have
held a ublic hearin on the amendment and shall have iven the Plannin Board a least
30 da s after the ublic hearin to make a recommendation concernin the amendment.
Board of Commissioners decisions ma be contested for the validit of a zonin or
develo ment ordinance text a endment for a eriod of one ear after the decision is
recorded b the clerk. Zonin ma ame dments ma not be contested after a decision is
made b the Board of Commissioners.

D When an a lica ton for amendment is demed b the Board of Commissioners a
enod of 12 months must ela se be ore ano her a lication for the same ro ert reviousl
nvolved ma be submitted.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 101




(E) Town Board Action

Before taking such lawful action as it may need advisable, the Town Board shall consider the Planning
and Zonin Board's written recommendation on each ro osed zonin amendment. If no
recommendation is received from the Planning and Zoning Board within thirty (30) days after a public
hearin b the Town Board the ro osed amendment shall be deemed to have beena rovedb the
Planning Board. A simple majority of the Board of Commissioners shall be required to amend this
ordinance followin arecommendation b the Plannin Board.

A governing board member shall not vote on any legislative decision regarding a development
regulation adopted pursuant to this Chapter where the outcome of the matter being considered is
reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial impact on the
member. A governing board member shall not vote on any zoning amendment if the landowner of
the ro ert sub’ecttoarezonin etition orthea licant for a text amendment has a close
familial, business, or gther associational relationship.

{F] Town Board Statement

Prior to ado tin or re’ectin an zonin amendment the Town Board shall ado t a statement
describing whether its action is consistent with an adopted comprehensive plan and explaining why

the Board considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest.

G Minutes of all roceedin s shall be taken and maintained b the Town Clerk or other desi nee.
G.S. 160D-308

(Ord. passed 12-16-85)

§151.118 VIOLATION REMEDIES.

In case an buildin or structure is erected constructed reconstructed re aired
converted or maintained oran buildin structure or land is used in violation of this cha ter
the Zonin Administrator or an other a ro riate town authorit oran erson who would be
damaged by such violation, in addition to other remedies, may institute injunction, mandamus, or
othera ro riateactionin roceedin to revent the violation.

Enforcement of Zoning Ordinance

a. Purpose-
In order to ensure com liance with the Zonin Ordinance and in articular accordance with G.S.

160D-404, the following procedures describe the enforcement procedures.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 102




b App icability-
The rocedures described herein a asa ro riate within the ‘ur sdiction of t e Town of
Wa renton

¢. Enforcement

Wheneveracom ai sreceived alle in aviola ionof h's ordinance the Zonin Administ ator or
desi nee shal invest a e the com laint and take whatever action is warranted

O receivin com laints or other informa ‘on su estin a violation of this Ordinance the
Administra o or designee shal  vestigate the situation and determine whe her a viola io
exis s.

Ifins ectin the rem ses it will be erformed durin reasonable hours and u on resentin
credentials wi | have consent of he re ises owner or an adm’n strative search wa a to
ins ect areas not o entothe ubic. G.S. 160D-403 ¢ .

d. nitial Notice of V olation

On determinin  tha a violatio exists the Administrator shall ive the andowner s of the

ro ert and the olderofan develo menta rovals a written notice of the violation either in
orb ersonal deliver elect onic deliver or first class mail or 0s ed onthe ro ert . The
notice shal describe he nature 0  he violation state the o tions necessar to correct the
violation and invite the alle ed violator to meet the Administrator or desi nee for a heanin to
discuss the vio ation and how it ma be corrected resolved. The Admi istratorma rovide the
alle ed violator additional not ces of violations. G.S.160D-404 a

e. Final Notice of Violation Correction Order
The Administrator’s final wri ten notice of violation which ma also be the initial notice shall
also order correction of the violation s ecif areasonable time eriod within which the violation
must be corrected s ate which of the remedies and enalties authorized in this section the
Administrator ma  ursue if the violation is not corrected withint e s ecific time limit and state
that the correction order ma be a ealed to the Board of Ad ustment.

f. A ealtothe Board of Ad'ust ent
Pursuant to G.S ~ 160D-405 An ersona rievedb the Adm nistrator’s determination of a
violation or correction o der a a eal that determina ion or order o the Board of Ad ustment
in accordance w th the rovisions of this Cha ter. As rovidedb hat Article ana eal
generally stays all further actions to enforce a correction order un i he Board of Adjustment has
decided the a eal.

If the reci 1ent of a correction order does not a  eal to the Board of Ad ustment within the tim

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 103




CHAPTER 151: Zoning Codecs

limit specified in the Chapter, that person may not later appeal to the Board of Adjustment the
subsequent imposition of any remedy specified in the order.

g. Extension of Time Limit to Correct Violation

The recipient of a correction order, or the owner of the property on which the violation occurs
may submit to the Administrator a written request for extension of the order’s specified time limit
for correction of the viglation . On determining that the request includes engugh information to show
that the violation cannot be corrected within the specified time limit for reasons beyond the control of
the person reguesting the extension, the Administrator may extend the time limit as reasonably
necessary to allow timely correction of the violation.

h. Enforcement Action after Time Limit to Correct Violation

Eollowing the time limit for correction of the violation, including any stay or extension thereof, the
Administrator shall determine whether the violation has been corrected. If the violation has been
corrected, the Administrator shall take no further action against the alleged violator. If the violation has
not been corrected, the Administrator may act to impose one or more of the remedies and penalties
specified in the correction order.

a. Persons Liable
Any landowner or holder of a development approval who participates in, assists, directs, creates, or

maintains any situation that is contrary to the requirements of this Ordinance may be held
responsible for the violation, suffer the penalties, and be subject to the remedies herein provided.

b. Penalties and Remedies
The Administrator may pursue one or more of the following remedies and penalties to prevent,

correct, or abate a violation of this Ordinance, Use of one of the authorized remedies and penalties
does not preclude the Administrator from using any other authorized remedies or penalties, nor

does it relieve any party to the imposition of one remedy or penalty from imposition of any

authorized remedies or penalties.

i. Permit Revocation
In accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, the Administrator of Building Inspector may

revoke any development approval granted under this Ordinance for any substantial departure from

the approved application, plans, or specifications, for refusal or failure to comply with any local

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 104




develo mentre ulatonoran state aw dele ated o the Town o Warrento b the State for
enforcement.

he Admnistrator or Bu din Ins ectors alnot” the holder of he deve 0 menta rovaloft e
revocation in writin .

Al develo menta roval revoca onssha fo low the same rocedures re uired for the ini ia
‘ss ance of the develo menta rovalinclud'n an wr'tten notice s orheann s.

c. Permit Denia
Aslon asa v o ation of this Ordinance rema ns uncorrected the Administrator ma den or withhold

a rova 0 an erm’tor other author zation rov ded for in this Ordinance that 's sou ht for the
ro ert o which the violation occurs.

d Cvil Penalties

Al5da race eriod on al offenses that do not endan er ublic safet o
wellbeing.

The Administratorma im oseacivil nalt b ivin the violator a written citation either in
erson or b certified or re istered mail return recei tre uested. The citation shall describe
the nature of the violation s ecif the amount o thecivil en It bein im osed and direct
the violator to a thecivil enalt tothe Town of Warrenton w'thin 10 da s of the datet e
citation is received. If the violator fails to either pay the civil penalty or correct the violatio

within this time limit the Administrator ma institute a civ'l action in the nature of adebti a
court of com etent "urisdiction to recover the civil enalt

For ur oses of assessin the amount of a civil enalt each da the violation remains
uncorrected after receipt of the correction order (or receipt of the citation itself in the case of

emer enc enforcement shall constitute a se arate violation that sub’ects the violator to
additional civl enalt . The amounts are noted below:

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 105



| $250.00 fine per day for first 15 days {beginning immediately for offenses that endanger
p ‘¢ safety or wellbeing

$250.00 fine per day for next 15 days

$2500.00fine per day for remainder of the violationim]

e. reserved for future use

f. Sto Work Orders
Pursuant to G.S. 160D 404 the Administrator ma issue a sto work order in the followin cases:

If the work or activit substantiall violates state laws rovided the State has dele ated the Town to
enforce the law

If the work or activit substantiall violates local law

If the work or activit could endan er life or ro ert

The sto work order shalla 1 exclusivel tothes ecific art s of the work or activit that meets the
above criteria.

The Town ordesi ee shall deliver the sto work order to the holder of the develo menta roval and
the owner of the ro ert via ersonal delive electronic delive  or first class certified mail.
Violation of a sto  work order shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor.

Othe E uitable Relief

In addition to the above remedies and enalties the Administrator ma institute an othera ro riate
action or proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction to prevent, correct, or abate a violation of this

QOrdinance.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 106




Ord. assed 12-16-85

§151.116 Site — Specific Vesting Plans

a. Ana rovedsite-s ecific vestin  an recludes an zonin actionb the Town of
Wa enon which would chan e alter im air revent diminish or otherwise
dela hed ve o mentoruseofthe ro ert asset forthinana rovedsie-s ecific
vestin  a ndinaccordance with a 1cable limitations and exce tions

The deve o ment rovals listed below are determined b the Town of W rren on

to ualif assie-s ec1ic vestin  lans.

Subdivision ste ans s ec’aluse ermits

¢. Avestedn testabis d ursuan to this ordi ance shall run fora eriod of 2 ears
from the effec 1ve date of thea  oval of the underl in develo menta lication.

A Processforsubmt al a roval and amendment of a site s ecific vestin

a Eachsie-s ec fic vestin  lan shall incl de the informa ion e uired b the Tow:
of Warrenton fortheunder 1 t e ofdevelo ment lan.

b Each site-s ecific vestin  an shall rovide the notice and hearin e w ed or he
underl in t eofdevelo ment lan.

c. Ana rovedsite-s ecific ves in  lan and its conditions ma be amended with he
a roval of the owner and the local overnment in the same mnanner as re uired fo
theunderl n t eofdeveo ment lan.

d. U on followin the same ocess as re uired forthe ori inala rova the decisio
makin board o o ficial ma extend the vestin of asite s ecifcvestin lanu
to three ecars withtotallen h of vestin not to exceed five ears u on f'ndin

that:
1. The ermut has not etex ired
i. Conditions have not chan ed so substantiall as to warrant a ew
a lication  and
iti. The extension 1s warranted in i ht of all othe relevant

circumstances- includin  but not limi ed o the size of the
develo ment economic ¢ cles and market conditions or other
considerations.

B Limits of site s eciicves n lans

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 107



a. Nothin inthe ordinance shall rohibit the revocation of the or1 inala roval or
other remedies for failure to com | witha licable terms and conditions of the
a roval or the zonin ordinance. The develo ment remains sub’ect to subse uent
review and a rovals to ensure com liance with the terms and conditions of the
ori inala rovalorb a licablere lations.

b. The e tablishment of a vested i ht ursuant to this ordinance shall not reclude the
a hcation of overla zonin thatim oses additional re uirements but does not
affect the allowablet € orintensit of use or ordinances or re lations that are

eneral in nature and are a  licableto all ro ert sub'ecttolandre lationb the
Town of Warrenton includin but not limited to buildin fire lumbin
electrical. and mechanical codes.

¢. New and amended zonin re lations that would be a licable to certain ro ert
but for the establishiment of a vested ri ht shall become effective u on the
ex iration or termination of the vested ri hts eriod rovided for in this ordinance.

d. U onissuance of a buildin  ermit the rovisions of G.S. 160D-1111 and 160D
1115a | exce tthatabuildin ermit shall not ex ire or be revoked because of
the runnin  of time while a zonin vested ri ht under this section is outstandin

e. An vested ri hts fora site-s ecific vestin  lan are sub’ect to exce tions s ecified
at G.S, 160D 108.1.

f. Pursuantto G.S. 160D-108 d 4 multi- hase develo ments shall be vested in
their entiret with there lations and ordinances in lace at the time of site lan
a roval for the initial develo ment hase. The vestin  eriod for multi- hase
develo ments shall be seven 7 ears.

§151.999 PENALTY. Reserved for future use

Ord. assed 12-16-85

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Tabte of Contents Index Page 108




TABLE OF SPECIAL ORDINANCES

Table

[. ANNEXATIONS

II. FRANCHISES

IIl. ZONING MAP CHANGES

F WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Table of Contents Index Page 109




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

CHAPTER 153: HISTORIC DISTRICT

Section
153.01 Purpose
153.02 Creation of Historic Preservation Commission for the Town of Warrenton

153.03 Commission Composition; Terms of Office; Attendance; Officers; Meetings;
Establishment of Rules; Directive to Survey

153.04 Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of the Commission
153.05 Part 1: Designation of Historic District
Part 2: Designation of Landmark
153.06 Required Landmark Designation Procedures
153.07 Reserved
153.08 Reserved
153.09 Certificate of Appropriateness Required
153.10 Conflict with other laws
153.11 Remedies
153.12 Appropriations
153.13 Certain Changes Not Prohibited
153.14 Delay in Demolition of Landmarks and Buildings within Historic District
153.20 Prevention of Demolition by Neglect of Buildings within Historic District.

153.90 Civil Remedies

153.91 Other Remedies and penalties of enforcement.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commiission

§153.01 PURPOSE

The historical heritage of the Town of Warrenton is a valued and important asset. The
conservation and preservation of historic districts and landmarks stabilize and increase property
values in their areas and strengthen the overall economy of the State. This Ordinance establishes
a historic preservation commission for the following purposes:

(A) To safeguard the heritage of Warrenton by preserving any district or landmark therein
that embodies important elements of its culture, history, architectural history, or prehistory; and

(B) To promote the use and conservation of such district or landmark for the education,
pleasure and enrichment of the residents of the Town and the State as a whole.

§153.02 CREATION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION FOR
THE TOWN OF WARRENTON, NORTH CAROLINA

(A) There is hereby established a Historic Preservation Commission (“Commission™) for the
Town of Warrenton under the authority of Chapter 160D A-Astiele+9Part of the North Carolina
General Statutes. N.C.G.S §160D-303A 4607

(B) The Commission’s jurisdiction for its activities shall coincide with the Town’s Zoning
Jurisdiction as delineated and shown on the official zoning map for the Town of Warrenton.
(Ord. 151.040, et seq.)

§153.03 Commission Composition; Terms of Office; Attendance; Officers; Meetings;
Establishment of Rules; Directive to Survey

(A) Composition: The Commission shall consist of seven (7) members. All the members
shall reside within the territorial jurisdiction of the town. Members of the Commission shall
have demonstrated special interest, experience or education in history, architecture, archaeology
or related fields. Two members of the Commission shall be recommended by Preservation
Warrenton, two members of the Commission shall be recommended by the Jacob Holt
Foundation, two members as recommended by the Board of Commissioners from the public and
the seventh member of the Commission shall be a member of the Board of Commissioners of the
Town of Warrenton (hercin referred to as “BOC”), although Commission members
recommendations by Preservation Warrenton and/or the Jacob Holt Foundations as set forth
herein need not be members of those organizations. Upon the recommending The BOC shall
appoint members.

(B) Terms of Office: Members of the Commission shall serve terms of four years. Terms
shall be staggered with the initial term of members being as follows: one (1) member for two (2)

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

years, three (3) members for three (3) years and three (3) members for four (4) years. A member
may be reappointed for consecutive terms. In the event that a member should need replacement,
the replacing member shall serve the remainder of the current term and shall be recommended to
the BOC from the appropriate organization as set forth above.

(C) Attendance: Any member of the Commission who misses more than three consecutive
regular meetings shall be replaced or reappointed by the BOC pursuant to this ordinance.
Absence due to sickness, death in the family or other emergencies of like nature shall be
recognized as approved absences and shall not affect the member’s status on the Commission,
except that in the event of a long illness or any other such cause for prolonged absence, the
member shall be replaced.

(D) Officers: The Historic Preservation Commission shall elect from among its members a
chairman, vice-chairman and treasurer. Officers shall be elected annually and may be re-elected.
A staff member of the Town of Warrenton may be appointed to serve as a secretary or an
administrative advisor for the Commission. The Commission may appoint advisory bodies and
committees as appropriate.

(E) Meetings: The Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting each month, except
when it has no business pending. Special meetings may be called in a manner determined by the
Commission and its rules and procedures. All meetings shall be subject to the North Carolina
Open Meeting laws and a public record shall be kept of the Commission’s resolutions,
proceedings, and actions.

(F) Rules and Procedures: The Historic Preservation Commission shall adopt rules of
procedure for the conduct of its business in keeping with the provisions of this Ordinance. The
rules and procedures shall at least provide for the selection and duties of the officers of the
Commission, the time and place of its regular meetings and the calling of special meetings, and
the procedures for the conduct of its meetings and public hearings.

Upon its first formal meeting and prior to performing any duties under this ordinance or
under Asticle19Rart-3C-of Chapter 160D-303A of the North Carolina General Statutes, the
Commission shall adopt rules of procedure (“Rules and Procedure”) for the conduct of its
business. Said rules and procedures shall be submitted to the BOC for approval. The
Commission shall prepare and submit an annual report in April of each year to the BOC. Such
report shall include a comprehensive and detailed review of the activities, problems and actions
of the Commission as well as any budget requests or recommendations which need to be
described to maintain the Town’s designation as a Certified Local Government (CLG) as
required by the State Historic Preservation Officer. The Commission shall keep as public record
an accurate account of its meeting attendance and adopted resolutions, findings, and

recommendations.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 99




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

The Commission shall perform the duties of both a separate historic districts commission and
a separate historic properties commission as required and shall conform their actions to this
ordinance and the statutory directive when acting in either capacity.

§153.04 Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of the Commission

| Pursuant to Chapter 160D-942 A -Astiele 19, Part 3€ of the North Carolina General Statutes
and this ordinance, the Commission shall have the following powers, duties and responsibilities:

(A) Review the inventory of properties of historical, architectural, archaeological, and/or
cultural significance as designated in the 1976 survey of properties for the Town of Warrenton.

(B) Recommend to the BOC additional districts or areas to be designated in the ordinance as
*Historic Districts” within the Town of Warrenton and its extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction,

(C) Recommend to the BOC that designation of any district or area as a historic district or
part thereof be revoked or removed for just cause.

(D) Recommend to the BOC individual structures, buildings, sites, areas or objects to be
designated by ordinance as “historic properties.”

(E) Recommend to BOC that designation of any building, structure, site, area or object as a
historic property be revoked or removed.

(F) Conduct an educational program with respect to historic properties and districts within
its jurisdiction.

(G) Publish information about, or otherwise inform the owners of property within the district
or of designated historic properties, of any matters pertinent to its duties, organization,
procedures, responsibilities, functions or requirements.

(H) Cooperate with the State, Federal and local governments in pursuance of the purposes of
this ordinance. The Commission when authorized by the BOC may contract with the State or the
United States of America, or any agency of either or with any other organization provided the
terms are not inconsistent with State or Federal law, for services or funds.

(I) Recommend to the BOC and the State of North Carolina structures, sites, objects or
districts worthy of national, state or local recognition.

{(J) Communicate with other boards or commissions or agencies of the Town of Warrenton
or other governmental units to offer or request assistance, aid, guidance, or advice concerning
matters under its purview or of mutual interest.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 100




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

(K) Enter, solely in performance of its official duties and only at reasonable times, upon
private lands for examination or survey thereof. However, no member, employee or agent of the
Commission may enter any private building or structure without the express consent of the
owner or occupant thereof.

(L) Prepare and recommend the official adoption of a preservation element as part of the
Town of Warrenton’s comprehensive plan.

(M) Consider and act upon applications for Certificates of Appropriateness in accordance
with the Rules of Procedure and applicable Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Warrenton as set
forth in Section 153 et al.

(N) Act as, establish or designate a group, body or committee to give advice to property
owners concerning the treatment of the historical and visual characteristics of their properties,
such as fenestration, architectural, and landscape features.

(O) Attend and present its recommendations at public hearings on applications for
Certificates of Appropriateness where the BOC deems that such a hearing is necessary.

(P) Recommend guidelines to be established under which the Town Administrator or his/her
designee may approve applications for Certificates of Appropriateness for minor modifications
of historic properties or building structures or sites in a historic district on behalf of the
Commission, provided no application shall be denied by the Town Administrator without first
being considered by the Commission,

(Q) Undertake programs of information, research, or analysis relating to any matters under
its purview,

(R) Report violations of this ordinance, or related ordinances such as Zoning Ordinance and
building code, to the County Building Inspector.

(S) Negotiate at any time with the owner of a building, structure, site, area, or object for its
preservation when such an action is reasonably necessary or appropriate.

(T} Take steps during the period of postponement of demolition of any historic property to
ascertain what the BOC can or may do to preserve such properties, including consultation with
private civic groups, interested private citizens and other public boards or agencies and including
investigation of potential acquisition by the Town of Warrenton when the preservation of a given
historic property is clearly in the interest of the general welfare of the community and such
property is of certain historic, architectural and archaeological significance.

(U) Assist Town staff in obtaining the services of private consultants to aid in carrying out
programs of research or analysis when requested.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 101




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

(V) Recommend to the BOC changes to this or any other ordinance and propose new
ordinances or laws relating to historic properties and historic districts or relating to a total
program for the protection and/or development of the historic resources of the Town of
Warrenton and its environs.

(W) Exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as are required elsewhere by
this ordinance, the General Statutes of North Carolina or by the Town of Warrenton.

SECTIONS 153.1 through 1534 ADOPTED BY THE WARRENTON BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS ENACTED AUGUST 13, 2007.

§153.05 Part 1: Designation of Historic District

(A) The Warrenton Historic District Commission has conducted an investigation and
submitted a report describing the significance of the buildings, structures, features, sites or
surroundings to be included in the Warrenton Historic District, and a description of the
boundaries of such district has been prepared, and

(B) The Department of Cultural Resources, acting through the State Historic Preservation
Officer or his or her designee, has made an analysis of and recommendations concerning such
report and description of proposed boundaries.

(C) The Warrenton Historic District shall be comprised of the 1973 National Registry
District.

(D) The Town of Warrenton Historic District map and its building inventory shall be
available for public inspection at the Town Hall during regular business hours.

Part 2: Designation of Landmark

Upon complying with N.C.N.C.G.S. §160D-945A 400.6, the Town Board may adopt and
from time to time amend or repeal an ordinance designating one or more historic landmarks.
The Historic District Commission shall make recommendations for such designation in
accordance with the rules of the Commission and this chapter.

No property shall be recommended for designation as a historic landmark unless it is deemed
and found by the Historic District Commission to be of special significance in terms of its
historical, prehistoric, architectural, or cultural importance, and to possess integrity of design,
setting, workmanship, materials, feeling and/or association.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 102




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

The ordinance shall include a description of each property designated in the ordinance, the
name or names of the owner or owners of the property, those elements of the property that are
integral to its historical, architectural, or prehistoric value, including the land area of the property
so designated, and any other information the governing board deems necessary. For each
building, structure, site, area, or object so designated as a historic landmark, the ordinance shall
require that the waiting period set forth in this Part be observed prior to its demolition. For each
designated landmark, the ordinance shall also provide for a suitable sign on the property
indicating that the property has been so designated. If the owner consents, the sign shall be
placed upon the property. If the owner objects, the sign shall be placed on a nearby public right
of way.

As a guide for the identification and evaluation of landmarks, the Historic District
Commission shall undertake, at the earliest possible time and consistent with the resources
available to it, an inventory of properties of historical, architectural, prehistoric, and cultural
significance within its jurisdiction. Such inventories and any additions or revisions thereof shall
be submitted as expeditiously as possible to the Office of Archives and History. No ordinance
designating a historic building, structure, site, area or object as a landmark nor any amendment
thereto may be adopted, nor may any property be accepted or acquired by the Historic District
Commission or the Town Board, until all of the following procedural steps in compliance with
N.C.G.S §160D303A-406-06 have been taken.

Upon adoption of the ordinance, the owners and occupants of each designated landmark shall
be given written notification of such designation insofar as reasonable diligence permits. One
copy of the ordinance and all amendments thereto shall be filed by the preservation commission
in the office of the register of deeds of the county in which the landmark or landmarks are
located. Each designated landmark shall be indexed according to the name of the owner of the
property in the grantee and grantor indexes in the register of deeds office, and the preservation
commission shall pay a reasonable fee for filing and indexing. In the case of any landmark
property lying within the zoning jurisdiction of a city, a second copy of the ordinance and all
amendments thereto shall be kept on file in the office of the city or town clerk and be made
available for public inspection at any reasonable time. A third copy of the ordinance and all
amendments thereto shall be given to the city or county building inspector. The fact that a
building, structure, site, area or object has been designated a landmark shall be clearly indicated
on all tax maps maintained by the county or city for such period as the designation remains in
effect.

Upon the adoption of the landmarks ordinance or any amendment thereto, it shall be the duty
of the Historic District Commission to give notice thereof to the tax supervisor of Warren
County. The designation and any recorded restrictions upon the property limiting its use for
preservation purposes shall be considered by the tax supervisor in appraising it for tax purposes.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 103




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

§153.07 RESERVED

§153.08 RESERVED

§153.09 Certificate of Appropriateness required

(A) From and after the designation of a landmark or a historic district, no exterior portion of
any building or other structure (including masonry walls, fences, light fixtures, steps and
pavement, or other appurtenant features), nor above ground utility structure nor any type of
outdoor advertising sign shall be erected, altered, restored, moved, or demolished on such
landmark or within such district until after an application for a certificate of appropriateness
(herein and after “certificate”) as to exterior features has been submitted to and approved by the
preservation commission. The Town requires a certificate to be issued by the Historic
Commission prior to the issuance of a building permit or other permit granted for the purposes of
constructing, altering, moving, or demolishing structures, which certificate may be issued subject
to reasonable conditions necessary to carry out the purposes of this Part.

(B) A certificate of appropriateness shall be required whether or not a building or other
permit is required.

(C) For purposes of this ordinance, "exterior features" shall include the architectural style,
general design, and general arrangement of the exterior of a building or other structure, including
the kind and texture of the building material, the size and scale of the building, and the type and
style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs, and other appurtenant fixtures. In the case of
outdoor advertising signs, "exterior features” shall be construed to mean the style, material, size,
and location of all such signs. Such "exterior features” may, in the discretion of the local
governing board, include historic signs, color, and significant landscape, archaeological, and
natural features of the area.

(D) Except as provided in (€) below, the Historic Commission shall have no jurisdiction over
interior arrangement and shall take no action under this section except to prevent the
construction, reconstruction, alteration, restoration, moving, or demolition of buildings,
structures, appurtenant fixtures, outdoor advertising signs, or other significant features in the
district which would be incongruous with the special character of the landmark or district.

(E) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, jurisdiction of the Historic Commission
over interior spaces shall be limited to specific interior features of architectural, artistic or
historical significance in publicly owned landmarks; and of privately owned historic landmarks
for which consent for interior review has been given by the owner. Said consent of an owner for
interior review shall bind future owners and/or successors in title, provided such consent has
been filed in the Warren County Registry of Deeds and indexed according to the name of the

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 104




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

owner of the property in the grantee and grantor indexes. The landmark designation shall specify
the interior features to be reviewed and the specific nature of the commission's jurisdiction over
the interior.

(F) Prior to any action to enforce a landmark or historic district ordinance, the Historic
Commission shall (i) prepare and adopt rules of procedure, and (ii) prepare and adopt principles
and guidelines not inconsistent with this Part for new construction, alterations, additions, moving
and demolition.

(G) Prior to issuance or denial of a certificate of appropriateness the Historic Commission
shall take such steps as may be reasonably required in the ordinance and rules of procedure to
inform the owners of any property likely to be materially affected by the application, and shall
give the applicant and such owners an opportunity to be heard. In cases where the commission
deems it necessary, it may hold a public hearing concerning the application. All meetings of the
commission shall be open to the public, in accordance with the North Carolina Open Meetings
Law, Chapter 143, Article 33C.

(H) All applications for certificates of appropriateness shall be reviewed and acted upon
within a reasonable time, not to exceed 180 days from the date the application for a certificate of
appropriateness is filed, as defined by the ordinance or the commission's rules of procedure. As
part of its review procedure, the Historic Commission may view the premises and seek the
advice of the Division of Archives and History or such other expert advice as it may deem
necessary under the circumstances.

(I) An appeal may be taken to the Board of Adjustment from the Historic Commisston's
action in granting or denying any certificate, which appeals (i) may be taken by any aggrieved
party, (ii) shall be taken within times prescribed (30 Days), and (iii} shall be in the nature of
certiorari.

(J) Any appeal from the Board of Adjustment's decision in any such case shall be heard by
the Superior Court of Warren County.

(K) All of the provisions of this Part are hereby made applicable to construction, alteration,
moving and demolition by the State of North Carolina, its political subdivisions, agencies and
instrumentalities, provided however they shall not apply to interiors of buildings or structures
owned by the State of North Carolina.

(L) The State and its agencies shall have a right of appeal to the North Carolina Historical
Commission or any successor agency assuming its responsibilities under N.C.G.S. §121-12(a)
from any decision of the Warrenton Historic District commission. The commission shall render
its decision within 30 days from the date that the notice of appeal by the State is received by it.
The current edition of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Guidelines
for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings shall be the sole principles and guidelines used in reviewing

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 105




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

applications of the State for certificates of appropriateness. The decision of the commission shall
be final and binding upon both the State and the preservation commission.

§153.10 Conflicts with other laws

Whenever any part of this ordinance adopted pursuant to this Part requires a longer waiting
period or imposes other higher standards with respect to a designated historic landmark or
district than are established under any other statute, charter provision, or regulation, this Part
shall govern. Whenever the provisions require a longer waiting period or impose other higher
standards than are established under this Part, such other stature, charter provision, ordinance or
regulation shall govern. (1989, c. 706, s. 2.)

§153.11 Remedies

In case any building, structure, site, area or object designated as a historic landmark or
located within a historic district designated pursuant to this Part is about to be demolished
whether as the result of the deliberate neglect or otherwise, materially altered, remodeled,,
removed or destroyed, except in compliance with the ordinance or other provisions of this Part,
the city or county, the historic preservation commission, or other party aggrieved by such action
may institute any appropriate action or proceedings to prevent such unlawful demolition,
destruction, material alteration, remodeling or removal, to restrain, correct or abate such
violation, or to prevent any illegal act or conduct with respect to such building, structure, site,
area or object. Such remedies shall be in addition to any others authorized by this Chapter for

| violation of a municipal ordinance. (1989, c. 706, s. 2) SEE N.C.N.C.G.S. §160D950A-400-11

§153.12 Appropriations

I A city or county goveming board is authorized to make appropriationsestiesns to a historic
preservation commission established pursuant to this Part in any amount that it may determine
necessary for the expenses of the operation of the commission, and may make available any
additional amounts necessary for the acquisition, restoration, preservation, operation, and
management of historic buildings, structures, sites, areas or objects designated as historic
landmarks or within designated historic districts, or of land on which such buildings or structures
are located, or to which they may be removed. (1989, c. 706, s. 2) SEE N.C.N.C.G.S. §160D-
943A400.12

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 106




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

§153.12 Certain Changes not prohibited

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair of
any exterior architectural feature in a historic district or of a landmark which does not involve a
change in design, material, or appearance thereof nor to prevent the construction, reconstruction,
alteration, restoration, moving or demolition of any such feature which the building inspector
shall certify is required by the public safety because of an unsafe or dangerous condition. SEE
N.C.N.C.G.S. §160D-948A-460-13

§153.13 Delay in demolition of landmarks and buildings within historic District.

(A) An application for a certificate of appropriateness authorizing the relocation, demolition
or destruction of a designated landmark or a building, structure or site within the district may not
be denied except as provided below in subsection (C). However, the effective date of such a
certificate may be delayed for a period of up to 365 days from the date of approval. The
maximum period of delay authorized by this section shali be reduced by the commission where it
finds that the owner would suffer extreme hardship or be permanently deprived of all beneficial
use of or return from such property by virtue of the delay. During such period the Historic
District Commission shall negotiate with the owner and with any other parties in an effort to find
a means of preserving the building or site. If the preservation commission finds that a building or
site within a district has no special significance or value toward maintaining the character of the
district, it shall waive all or part of such period and authorize earlier demolition, or removal. If
the Historic District Commission has voted to recommend designation of a property as a
landmark or designation of an area as a district, and final designation has not been made by the
Town Board, the demolition or destruction of any building, site, or structure located on the
property of the proposed landmark or in the proposed district may be delayed by the commission
or planning board for a period of up to 180 days or until the local governing board takes final
action on the designation, whichever occurs first. SEE N.C.N.C.G.S. §160D-949A—400-14

(B) The Town Board or the Historic District Commission may prevent the demolition by
neglect of any designated landmark or any building or structure within an established historic
district. Such ordinance shall provide appropriate safeguards to protect property owners from
undue economic hardship.

(C) An application for a certificate of appropriateness authorizing the demolition or
destruction of a building, site, or structure determined by the State Historic Preservation Officer
as having statewide significance as defined in the criteria of the National Register of Historic
Places shall be denied except where the commission finds that the owner would suffer extreme
hardship or be permanently deprived of all beneficial use or return by virtue of the denial.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 107




Rulcs of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

§153.14-19 RESERVED

§153.90 Civil Remedies

In case any building, structure, site, area or object designated as a historic landmark or
located within a historic district designated pursuant to this ordinance is about to be demolished
whether as the result of deliberate neglect or otherwise, materially altered, remodeled, removed
or destroyed, except in compliance with the ordinance, the Town or County, the Historic District
Commission, or other party aggrieved by such action may institute any appropriate action or
proceedings to prevent such unlawful demolition, destruction, material alteration, remodeling or
removal, to restrain, correct or abate such violation, or to prevent any illegal act or conduct with
respect to such building, structure, site, area or object. Such remedies shall be in addition to any
others authorized by the General Statutes for violation of a municipal ordinance.

§153.91 Other Remedies and penalties of enforcement.

(A) Permit denial: An application for a Town permit or renewal thereof hereunder may be
denied by the Town manager or his designee if the prospective Town permittee fails to comply
with any of the requirements of sections of the Histori¢ District ordinance, above or if a material
violation exists of any provision of this article.

(B) Permit revocation: The Town permit shall be revoked by the Town manager or his
designee for any material violation of this article or for false representations made in securing a
permit hereunder. The Town manager or his designee may revoke the Town permit by notifying
the Town permittee holder in writing and stating the reason for revocation. any Town permittee
whose permit is denied or revoked may appeal said denial or revocation to the full board of
commissioners.

(C) Civil penalty: Violation of this article subjects a violator to a civil penalty in the amount
of $100.00. The Town manager or his designee may impose a civil penalty by giving the
violator a written citation either in person or by registered mail, return receipt requested. The
citation shall describe the nature of the violation, specify the amount of the civil penalty being
imposed, and inform the violator to pay the civil penalty or correct the violation or both within
the time limit. Any order to correct a violation shall specify a reasonable time period in which
the violation may be brought into compliance (the "compliance period") and no additional
penalties shall be assessed until the compliance period has expired. The Town may institute a
civil action in the nature of a debt collection in a court of competent jurisdiction to recover any
civil penalty assessed hereunder.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 108 J




Rules of The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission

(D) Each violation and each day that a violation continues after the expiration of the
compliance period shall be considered a separate offense for the purposes of the civil penalty
specified in this section.

(E) Injunction and abatement order: The Town manager or his designee may institute an
action in a court of competent jurisdiction for mandatory or prohibitory injunction and order of
abatement commanding the violator to correct or cease the violation of this article.

(F) Other eguitable relief: In addition to the above remedies and penalties, the Town may
institute any other appropriate equitable action or proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction
to prevent, correct or abate a violation of this chapter.

(G) Attorney fees: If it is necessary to institute a civil or equitable action under this section,
| attorneysattorney’s fees incurred by the Town shall be taxed to the defendant as an additional
civil penalty hereunder if the Town is the prevailing party.

(H) Primacy of state and federal law: Nothing herein shall be read to allow the Town to
impose civil penalties or initiate a civil action for the violation of a federal or state law, rule,

regulation.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Title XV, Chapters 150-158 Page 109 J







Historic District Rules of Procedure

The Town of Warrenton Historic Preservation Commission
HISTORIC DISTRICT RULES OF PROCEDURE

1.0 PURPOSE

To establish procedures for organizing the business of the Warrenton Historic
Preservation Commission (“Commission”); for processing applications for a Certificate of
Appropriateness (“COA™); for pursuing the designation of historic properties; and to fulfill any
other duties contained and/or implied in the Historic Preservation Ordinances (‘Ordinance”).

2.0 GENERAL RULES

The Commission shall be governed by the regulations pertaining to historic properties as
incorporated in the Town’s Zoning Ordinance and by the terms of Chapter 160D-303 Historic
Districts and Landmarks of the North Carolina General Statutes. For procedures not covered by
the aforementioned the Commission shall follow the rules contained in the current edition of

Robert’s Rules of Order.

3.0 JURISDICTION

The Commission’s jurisdiction for its activities shall coincide with the Town’s Zoning
Jurisdiction as delineated and shown on the official zoning map for the Town of

Warrenton.

4.0 MEMBERS, OFFICERS AND DUTIES

The Commission shall be composed of seven (7) members, whose qualifications and
terms of office are set forth in the Warrenton Historic Preservation Zoning Ordinance.

4.1 Chairman

The members of the Commission shall elect a Chairman from among the Commission’s
members. The Chairman shall decide all points of order and procedure subject to these rules,
unless directed otherwise by a majority of the Commission in session at the time. The Chairman
shall appoint any committees found necessary to investigate any matters before the Commission.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

4.2 Vice-Chairman

The Commission shall elect a Vice-Chairman from among the Commission’s members in
the same manner as the Chairman. The Vice-Chairman shall serve as acting Chairman in the
absence of the Chairman and, at such times, shall have the same powers and duties as the
Chairman.

4.3 Secretary

The Town Administrator shall also serve as Secretary to the Commission. The Secretary,
subject to the direction of the Chairman of the Commission, shall keep all records, conduct all
correspondence of the Commission, and generally supervise the clerical work of the
Commission. The Secretary, being an exofficio member of the Commission, shall not be eligible
to vote on any matter which comes before the Commission.

4.4 Elections

The election of officers shall be held at the first regular meeting following the enactment
of this ordinance. Thereafter, the election of officers shall be held at the first regular meeting in
July of each year. Members shall be notified by the Secretary in writing of the election of
officers at least thirty days prior to the regular July meeting,

4.5 Attendance at Meetings

Faithful and prompt attendance at all meetings of the Commission and conscientious
performance of the duties required of members shall be a prerequisite to continuing membership
on the Commission. Should a member fail to attend three consecutive regular meetings of the
Commission and should there be no adequate excuse for such absences, the Chairman, with the
concurrence of a majority of the members of the Commission present at a regularly scheduled
meeting, shall recommend to the Board of Commissioners (“Board’) that a vacancy be declared
and that the vacated position be filled.

4.6 Applications Involving Member

No Commission member shall take part in the hearing, consideration or determination of
any case in which he/she is a part or has a financial interest.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




tlistoric District Rules of Procedure

4.7 Conflicts of Interest

4.7.1 No member of the Commission shall seek to influence a decision, participate in any
action or cast a vote involving any matter that is before the Commission which may result in a
private benefit to themselves, their immediate relatives or their business interests. In applying
this rule, the following procedure shall govern:

(a) A Commission member, who determines there exists a conflict of interest,
shall declare the existence of a conflict and shall seat himself apart from the
remaining Commission members at such times as when said matter is being
discussed by the Commission. Said member shall abstain from voting on said
matter but may voice his/her opinion, as a non-voting citizen on the mailer.

(b) A Commission member who believes there may exist a conflict of interest
shall declare the possible conflict and ask for a determination by the
Commission. A majority vote of the Commission shall determine whether or not
a conflict of interest exists.

4.7.2 A challenge of the existence of a conflict of interest or a challenge of an undisclosed
conflict of interest may be filed by any interested party with the Commission. Such a challenge
may be an appeal for a review of the finding of the Board or may be for the purpose of alleging
an undeclared conflict of interest. Any challenge made to the Commission shall be supported by
competent evidence and shall be submitted to a properly convened meeting of the -Commission.
The Commission shall hear all evidence and shall, by majority vote, make the final determination
as to the existence of a conflict of interest.

4.7.3 Withdrawal from participation in any matter is necessary only in those specific cases in
which a conflict exists. There shall be no attempt to exclude entire categories of consideration
because of the business or profession with which a member is associated.

4.8 Knowledge of Controlling Rules and Regulations

Each member of the Commission shall be thoroughly familiar with all Statutes, Laws,
Ordinances and Rules of Procedure relating to historic properties and the authority of the
Commission.

5.0 Meetings

5.1 Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the third Monday of each month at

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

7:00 p.m. in the Warrenton Town Hall; provided that the meetings may be held at some other
convenient place if directed by the Chairman in advance of the meeting.

52 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Commission may be called at any time by the Chairman in
compliance with the North Carolina General Statutes regarding open meetings.

53 Cancellation of Meetings

Meetings of the Commission may be cancelled at any time by the Chairman in
compliance with the North Carolina General Statutes regarding open meetings.

54 Quorum

A quorum shall consist of four (4) members of the Commission.

55 Conduct of Meetings

All meetings shall be open to the public. The order of business at regular meetings shall
be as follows: (a) roll call; (b) approval of minutes of previous meeting; (c) time for public
comments; (d) report of committees; (€) unfinished business; (f) consideration of applications;
(g) new business to be brought to the attention of the Commission; (h) adjournment.

6.0 APPLICATION PROCEDURES — CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

6.1 Certificate of Appropriateness Required

Once a property or area is designated a landmark or a historic district, no exterior portion
of any building or other structure (including masonry walls, fences, light fixtures, steps and
pavement, or other appurtenant features), nor above-ground utility structure nor any type of
outdoor advertising sign shall be erected, altered, restored, moved, or demolished on such
landmark or within such district until after an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness
(COA) as to exterior features has been submitted to and approved by the Commission. Such
COA must be issued by the Commission prior to the issuance of a zoning permit, building permit
or other permit granted for the purposes of constructing, altering, moving, or demolishing

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

structures, which such COA may be issued subject to reasonable conditions necessary to carry
out the purposes of this Ordinance. A COA shall be required whether or not a building or other
permit is required. Normal maintenance such as painting, yard maintenance and the repair of
broken glass is considered a minor work and does not require a COA.

For purposes of this Ordinance, “exterior features” shall include the architectural style,
general design, and general arrangement of the exterior of a building or other structure, including
the kind and texture of the building material, the size and scale of the building, and the type and
style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs, and other appurtenant fixtures. In the case of
outdoor advertising signs, “exterior features” shall be construed to mean the style, material, size,
and location of all such signs. Such “exterior features” may include historic signs, color, and
significant landscape, archaeological, and natural features of the area.

0.2 Filing of Application

An application must be filed by the first Thursday of each month with the Secretary to the
Commission prior to the next meeting of the Commission, accompanied by sketches, drawings,
photographs, specifications, descriptions, etc., of the proposed project.

6.3  Notice to Neighboring Property Owners

The Secretary shall notify all of the individuals, firms, or corporations owning property
adjacent to the side, rear, and in front of (across the street from) the property being considered
for a COA.

6.4 Review Sub-Committee

It shall be the policy of the Commission in regard to applications involving new
construction or extensive alterations that a sub-committee of the Commission shall be available
to meet with representatives of the persons or organizations involved in the coming application at
some early stage in the design process in order to advise them informally concerning the
Commission’s guidelines, the nature of the area where the proposed construction is to take place,
and other relevant factors. This sub-committee collectively and individually shall refrain from
any indication of approval or disapproval, but shall not, for that reason, be barred from a
reasonable discussion of the applicant’s proposal. No advice or opinion given, or reported as
having been given, by any member of the subcommittee at such an informal meeting shall be in
any way official or binding upon the Historic Preservation Commission at anytime. Notice of the
need for such a conference should be given to future applicants by the Town at the earliest
appropriate time.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

6.5 Public Hearings

In cases where the Commission deems it necessary, it may hold a public hearing
concerning the application.

0.6 Time for Decision

The Commission must take formal action to issue or deny a COA within a reasonable
time, not to exceed 180 days from the date the application for a COA is filed. The imposed time
limit may be extended upon mutual agreement of the applicant and the Commission.

0.7 Approved Application

If the application is approved, the Secretary for the Commission shall transmit to the
applicant, a COA in letter form, clearly describing the nature of the work which has been
approved. The Secretary shall attach a copy of the minutes of the meeting at which approval was
granted and forward this information to the Inspections Department, which is responsible for its
enforcement.

6.8 Denied Applications

If an application is denied, a copy of the minutes of the meeting and written reasons for
denial shall be made available to the applicant.

7.0 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS

Any party may appear in person or by agent or attorney at the meeting. The order of
business for consideration of applications for a COA shall be as follows:

(a) The Chairman, or such person as he/she shall direct, shall give a preliminary
statement describing the application.

(b) The applicant shall present the arguments in support of the application.

(c) Persons opposed to granting the application shall present the arguments
against the application.

(d) Statements or arguments submitted by an official, commission, or
Department of the Town of Warrenton, any State agency, or any local historical,

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

preservation, or neighborhood association should be presented as directed by the
Chairman.

(e) The Chairman, or such person as he shall direct, shall summarize the
evidence which has been presented; giving all parties an opportunity to make
objections or corrections.

() The Commission shall proceed to deliberate thereafter to grant the
application or to deny it in a manner consistent with the provisions set forth
herein.

The Commission may, in its discretion, view the premises subject to the application and
obtain additional facts concerning any application before arriving at a decision. All decisions of
the Commission shall be supported by appropriate Findings of Fact, and where necessary, shall
be accompanied by such conditions and/or recommendations as it may determine to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

In considering applications, witnesses may be called and factual evidence may be
submitted, but the Commission shall not be limited to consideration of such evidence as would
be admissible in a court of law.

8.0 RECONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS WHICH HAVE BEEN DENIED

The order of business for reconsideration of applications for a COA which previously have
been denied shall be as follows:

8.1 The Chairman shall entertain a motion from a member of the Commission that the
applicant be allowed to present evidence in support of the request for reconsideration. Such
evidence shall be limited to that which is necessary to enable the Commission to determine
whether or not there has been a substantial change in the facts, evidence or conditions relating to
the application provided, however, that the applicant shall be given the opportunity to present
any other additional supporting evidence, if the Commission decides to reconsider the
application.

8.2  After receiving the evidence, the Commission shall proceed to deliberate whether or not
there has been a substantial change in the facts, evidence or conditions relating to the application,
which would warrant reconsideration, If the Commission finds that there has been such a change,
it shall treat the request as a new application received at that time.

9.0 MODIFICATIONS OF APPLICATIONS

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDPINANCES — Historic District Rules Page 7




Historic District Rules of Procedure

An approved or pending application for a COA may be modified by a written request
from the applicant to the Commission. Such a request shall include a description of the proposed
change and shall be accompanied by elevations, plans, or sketches, where necessary. If the
Commission finds that the modifications constitute a substantial change, which might affect
surrounding property owners, it shall request the Secretary to notify affected property owners
following the procedures set in Section 6.2 before taking action on the modification. The
Commission shall treat the request in the same manner as any other application as outlined in
Section 6.0.

10.0 ACTION BY THE BOARD

All actions of the Commission shall have been put before the Commission members in
the form of a motion, duly seconded, and voted upon by all members present for a quorum.

11.0 APPEALS

Appeals from decisions of the Commission shall be made to the Board of Adjustments within
thirty days of the approval by the Commission of the minutes of the meeting containing the
decision being appealed.

12.0 DESIGNATION OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES (Districts and Landmarks)

12.1 Identification and Evaluation of Historic Properties

The commission shall maintain an inventory of properties thought to have historical,
architectural, pre-historical, and cultural significance within its jurisdiction. Such inventories and
any additions or revisions thereof shall be submitted as expeditiously as possible to the Division
of Archives and History (State of North Carolina) for comment. Listing in the inventory shall be
a prerequisite for pursuing local designation as a historic district or landmark.

12.2 Initiating the Designation of Historic Properties

Any individual or group with interest in historic preservation may seek the Historic
Preservation Commission’s assistance in advancing a certain property for consideration of
designation. Any property owner may request and enlist the assistance of the Commission in
pursuing the designation of a property, which he/she/they own. Also, the Commission may of its

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules




Historic District Rules of Procedure

own volition initiate the local designation of historic properties. When designation is not being
initiated by the property owner, the Commission shall notify the property owner of the
designation application and extend to the property owner an opportunity to appear before the
Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting to voice his‘her/their support or lack thereof for
the designation application,

12.3 Designation Recommendations

The Commission shall forward local designation recommendations to the Town Board
for formal action. No property shall be recommended for designation unless it is deemed and
found by the Commission to be of special significance in terms of its historical, prehistoric,
architectural, or cultural importance and to possess integrity of design, selling, workmanship,
materials, feeling and/or association. A report addressing these items shall be prepared in writing
and upon review and formal approval of the Commission shall be forwarded to the Division of
Archives and History for comment. After which, the same, along with any comments obtained
from the State Agency, shall be presented to the Town Board for consideration prior to formal
action being taken on the designation of historic properties.

12.4 Town Board Designations

The designation of a historic landmark or district shall become effective upon the
adoption of an Ordinance by the Warrenton Town Board. Upon the adoption of the Ordinance,
the owners and occupants of each designated landmark or property within a designated district
shall be given written notification of the designation along with a copy of Section 6.0 of this
Ordinance.

13.0 AMENDMENTS

These rules may, within the limits allowed by law, be amended at any time by an affirmative
vote of not less than a majority of the members of the Commission, provided that such
amendment shall have first been presented to the membership of the Commission in writing at a
regular or special meeting preceding the meeting at which their vote is taken.

TOWN OF WARRENTON - CODE OF ORDINANCES — Historic District Rules







E LA {E.K

NORTH CAROLINA

P.O. Box 281
Walter M. Gardner, Jr. — Mayor Warrenton, NC 27589-0281
Robert F. Davie, Jr. — Town Administrator (252) 257-1122 Fax(252) 257-9219

www.warrenton.nc.gov

AMENDMENT REGARDING ADOPTING NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 160D LAND USE
REGULATIONS FOR CONSISTENCY WITH STATE LAW

Whereas the Town of Warrenton Board of Commissioners herby adopt the following Plan Consistency
Statement:

The State of North Carolina passed major Planning enabling legislation creating a new Chapter 160D
applicable to Land Use Regulations and mandated that local governments adopt land use regulations
consistent with state law as prescribed by Chapter 160D. These amendments are consistent with state
law as prescribed by Chapter 160D of the North Carolina General Statutes.

The amendments will work in conjunction with the proposed Comprehensive Plan when approved to
provide orderly growth and opportunities within the Town of Warrenton’s Town Limits and
Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN OF WARRENTON BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
THAT:

The Town of Warrenton Zoning Ordinance, Historic Preservation Commission Ordinance and Historic
District Rules of Procedure are adopted and herby approved.

Should any provision of these ordinances amendments be decided by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall have no effect to the validity of the
Town of Warrenton Zoning or Historic Preservation Commission Regulations as a whole or any part
thereof than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

The amendments shall take effect and be in force upon the date and time of adoption.

These amendments duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Warrenton, this the
11t day of July, 2022.

Walter Gardner, Mayor
Attest:

Robert Davie, Town Clerk
Approved as to legal form:

Town Attorney



	Summary and Detailed Zoning Ordinance Changes for 160D Compliance
	Rules of Procedure - Historic District for 160D Compliance
	Resolution Adopting Zoning Ordinance Changes for NC GS 160D Compliance

